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SENATE BILL 56-FN
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AMENDED ANALYSIS

This bill authorizes the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and debit
card payments of taxes.

Explanation: Matter added to current law appears in bold italics.
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STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
In the Year of Our Lord Two Thousand Eleven
AN ACT authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and

debit card payments of taxes.

Be it Enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court convened:

1 New Section; Credit or Debit Card Payment. Amend RSA 21-J by inserting after section 43
the following new section:

21-J:43-a Credit or Debit Card Payment. The commissioner of the department of revenue
administration and any authorized employee or agent of the commissioner may accept credit cards or
debit cards in the payment of any of the taxes, penalties, interest, or fees administered by the
commissioner or collected by the department. The department may add to the amount due, in
addition to any tax, penalties, and interest payable, a service charge for the acceptance of the credit
card or debit card, as approved by the department. The department, at the time of billing, shall
disclose the amount of the service charge. The commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-
A, as necesgsary for the administration of such electronic transactions.

2 Effective Date. This act shall take effect 60 days after its passage.
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SB 66-FN - FISCAL NOTE
AN ACT authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and

debit card payments of taxes.

FISCAL IMPACT:
The Department of Revenue Administration states this bill may decrease state general fund
expenditures by an indeterminable amount in FY 2012 and each year thereafter. This bill will

have no fiscal impact on state, county and local revenue, or county and local expenditures.

METHODOLOGY:
The Department of Revenue Administration states this bill authorizes the Department to
accept credit card payments of taxes, The Department states although electronic payment will
result in savings to the Department, they are unable to determine the exact fiscal impact at
this time. Over the past two years, the Department has averaged the receipt and subsequent
deposit of approximately 265,000 checks. The handling cost of those checks is approximately
$582,553 annually, and the state pays approximately $87,000 annually for armored car
gservices, and $18,550 in bank fees. The Department states the cost to the State to process
electronic credit/debit card payments is $0. The Department also does not anticipate any start-

up or maintenance costs associated with this bill.
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Amendment to SB 56-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 New Section; Credit or Debit Card Payment. Amend RSA 21-J by inserting after section 43
the following new section:

21-J:43-a Credit or Debit Card Payment. The commissioner of the department of revenue
administration and any authorized employee or agent of the commissioner may accept credit cards or
debit cards for the online payment of any of the taxes, penalties, interest, or fees administered by the
commiggioner or collected by the department, The amount of any service charge required to be paid
by the taxpayer to the credit card or debit card service provider to cover the provider’s cost of this
gervice shall be determined by the department through a competitive bid process, and the service
provider shall add this charge to the amount due, in addition to any tax, penalties, and interest
payable. The department, at the time of billing, shall disclose the amount of the service charge to
the taxpayer. The commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, as necessary for the

administration of such electronic transactions.
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CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Good morning. Welcome to the Finance
Committee. It being 10 o'clock, we'll open the public
hearing on Senate Bill 56, authorizing Department of
Revenue Administration to accept credit card and debit card
payments of taxes. Senator Odell is the sponsor and he
sends along his staff member, Tom Cronin, to introduce the
bill. Welcome to Finance, Mr. Cronin.

TOM CRONIN, Majority Caucus Director, Senate Majority
Office, N.H State Senate: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
morning, Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee. For the
record, my name is Tom Cronin. I'm the Senate Majority
Caucus Director. ©On behalf of Senator Odell, I'm here to
quickly introduce Senate Bill 56, legislation authorizing
the Department of Revenue to accept debit and credit cards
payments for the payment of taxes. Senator Odell does
apologize he couldn't be here this morning. Otherwise
detained by Senate Committee work.

This legislation is about as straightforward as it
gounds. It simply brings the DRA into the 21st Century by
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giving them the authority to accept payments in the same
way that many other states and even the counties in this
state are allowed to do. Moreover, the legislation will
provide greater flexibility to taxpayers and another step
for gimplifying the way in which New Hampshire citizens
interact with their government. This legislation passed
both the Senate Ways and Means Committee and the Senate
Finance Committee with full support and was approved by the
full Senate on voice vote and as you all know recently
passed the House on the Consent Calendar. I certainly will
take any questions but I know representatives of DRA are
here and they might be a little bit better resources as far
as the technicalities of the bill.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you, Mr. Cronin. Questions
from the Committee? Representative Ober.

REP. OBER: We do have a Fiscal Note on this.

MR, CRONIN: Hm-hum.

REP. OBER: And the note says that there is a budget
neutral situation on this. In crafting this note, I'm sure
Senator Odell looked at that because I know when I have a
Fiscal Note on a bill I look at it carefully before it goes
to Committee. How did you decide or he decide that it would
be absolutely budget neutral?

MR. CRONIN: I believe that probably it be a better
question for the two representatives of DRA behind me.

REP. OBER: Is the answer to that the Senator didn't
look at that. He depended on the Fiscal Note to validate --

MR. CRONIN: I certainly wouldn't say that on behalf of
Senator 0Odell. I am sure he did leook at it, but I don't
know the answer to the guestion.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Simard for a question.
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REP. SIMARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Can you tell me
what the percentage on the service charge is and who
determines that?

MR. CRONIN: I believe the number was 2.75%. Is that
what you guys had?

REP. SIMARD: I'm sorry, what was that?

MR. CRONIN: That's definitely a better question for
DRA. They do know the answer. It was in the Senate
Committee report on the legislation. But I think it's a
little bit in flux so probably be a better question for
them.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Rodeschin for a
question.

REP. RODESCHIN: Thank you. I think this is more for
“you. When the Senate sends over their staff member they

cannot answer guestions because it's up to the Senator to
answer the questions so refrain from asking him questions.

REF. OBER: Are you suggesting we should recess until
the Senator can come?

REP. RODESCHIN: No, I'm not; but he cannot answer'
questions for the Senator.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you, Representative Rodeschin.

REP. RODESCHIN: You're welcome.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you, Mr. Cronin.

MR. CRONIN: Thank you.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: We now have coming from the
Department of Revenue Administration Mindy Cyr and Brian
Page -- Pace? Brian Pace?
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BRIAN PACE, Proiject Administrator, Bureau of
Administration, Department of Revenue Administration:
Pace, thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Page?

MR. PACE: Pace.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Pace. Okay.

MELINDA CYR, Tax Policy Analyst, Bureau of
Administration, Department of Revenue Administration: Good
morning.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you for coming. Good morning.

MS8. CYR: Thank you. Good morning, Mr. Chair, Members
of the Committee. For the record, my name is Mindy Cyx
with the Department of Revenue. With me today is the
project manager for the Department, Brian Pace. We had a
number of different bills that went through for sponsorship
with Senator Odell. This was one piece that we were very
grateful that he was sponsoring. We'd be happy to answer
some of the questions that we already heard. By way of
background, the Department, I'm sure that you may have
heard;through budget process or other conversations, that
we 've been modernizing through our computer systems,
locking to do more e-Filings, scanning, trying to get into
the 21st Century with our processing and with the ability
of the taxpayer to file and pay with the Department more
efficiently and more contemporary with what they're doing
with other State agencies. This was a tool or option for
the taxpayer. They do not have to pay by credit card. It's
just another option they would be given. What the process
would go through is -- and Brian can probably get into some
technical aspects of this. 1I'll give you kind of an
overview.

It would be through a third party vendor. Typical to
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what you would see if you go on-line tc buy something, and
you go to pay with credit card, it asks you which credit
card, vou would click on it and go through that process.
The State would not be a merchant in this case. It actually
be on the Department Website where the taxpayer when they
wanted to pay on-line would click a button. You'd be taken
to that third party vendor site and then you would be
processed through that. I have handouts here I can pass
along to show you that other towns and cities are doing
this currently. Counties are doing it. And actually, most
recently when I was testifying before the House Ways and
Means Committee, it came to my attention that the Secretary
of State's Office is now doing this. When you register a
business, or you're putting your Annual Report, filing your
annual payment, you would do so on-line. So what I've done
ig I've kind of taken a snapshot of different web sites so
you can see what it looks like.

There was a question about the convenience fee that's
brought on, and that goes to the question I think
Representative Ober had with the cost or the Fiscal Note.
The Department of Revenue is the one who drafts the Fiscal
Note to the bill and to tax bills that come through. With
this particular bill, we didn't see, 'cause there was no
cost to the State for this processing. It's through the
third party vendor. The third party vendor handles it all.
The convenience fee is the amount that's then taken as a
transaction for that process. The State is not a merchant
go there's nothing that we would be costing out.

In the Fiscal Note we identified that we would
actually see a savings in this. Would that savings be
entirely immediately? Probably not. But we are hoping as
everyone gees like through the IRS people start e-Filing
more, e-Paying more that it would be less paper processing.
S5c when we did the Fiscal Note, we identified the fact that
annually right now we process paper checks approximately
costing us close to $600,000. The amount was $592,553 and
that's to process the checks that we recelive manually now.

'In addition to the savings cost, we in processing those
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checks take in about 18,000 in bank fees to process. We
also have armored car service to do the transactions from
the Department to the bank and that costs about $87,000
annually. So what we are anticipating in the Fiscal Note,
there's no cost. We would put an RFP out that would
actually go through G & C process for approval, Governor
and Council process for approval when we look for the third
party vendor. There's no cost to the State. So we are
looking at having a savings and the amounts that I showed
you is what we're anticipating. Would everyone start
paying on-line right away? Probably not. Again, it's an
option. But we are hoping that people would use more and
more electronic means. And in using electronics means also
gets the money in qguicker. I think Brian was saying that
it loocks like once the transaction happens within 24 hours
that money would go inteo the State bank account. So we are
trying to move away from a manual process with the
Department. This is one way of giving an option to the
taxpayer to have another opportunity to pay electronically
for their convenience. I can pass out the handout which
shows some ~-- what the web gites look for some of the other
agencies or towns that do this. The rates, the convenience
fee rates differ and that's actually identified in some of
the handouts. Currently, I think with the Internal Revenue
Service they have rates between 1.59 to 2.75 depending upon
whether you're using a debit card or a credit card.
Sometimes -~-

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Mr. Kane is waiting for you to give
him the handout so he can pass them out.

MS. CYR: Thank you. And it really depends on the
negotiation with the third-party contractor as to what we
can get for a rate. Currently, you know, in finding out
the Secretary of State's Office is doing this with a third-
party vendoér, the guestion was asked during House Ways and
Means: Could we kind of consolidate and work with that
contract? Well, we would hope that we would like to
congolidate states with having one contract. But we would
really like to re-negotiate that contract because we feel
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we'll be taking in a lot more money than wouldn't maybe
some of thege simple filing fees that the other agencies
would take in. We would be taking in a lot more money.
Therefore, our rates should be considerably less. We'd
really like to negotiate those rates as low as we can for
the taxpayers. I don't know if Brian wants to add anything
elge. If you have any questions, we'd be more than happy to
try to answer them for you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Okay. Mr. Pace, did you want to add
anything?

MR. PACE: No. I think Mindy summed it up very well.
Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: All right. I got a whole list of
people here. Representative Rosenwald.

REP. ROSENWALD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. When I pay
my I&D taxes, I pay them on-line through a direct bank
draft and there's no cost to me. Will taxpayers lose that
option if this bill goes forwaxd?

MS. CYR: They will not. As far as -- and I probably
should -~

MR. PACE: That's absolutely correct.

MS. CYR: -- let Brian. He's the project manager
coordinating all of the e-Filing and e-Paying and
modernization that's happening with the Department. But

that option will not change. No.

REP. ROSENWALD: Thank you.

'CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Kurk for a question.

REP. KURK: Thank you. I see an opportunity here for
the State to make money. But not just save money but save
money and make money. Could you explain how much it would
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cost me as a taxpayer to use this service? Because you
gsaid it doesn't cost the Department anything and you get
your money within 24 hours. How much will it cost me?

M8, CYR: It would not cost the State any money to get
this contract and get this service running. As the taxpayer
when you would go on and make your payment and click and go
through to the third party, that rate, that percentage rate
would be based on what we could negotiate with the third
party contractor. And as I was stating, those -- those
rates of what they would charge for the convenience fee on
top of, for example, let's say you had taxes due, business
taxes due, you wanted to pay on-line. You have the option
to do so. Again, you don't have to. You would click on it.
It would -- it has to disclose to you the amount of the
convenience fee at that time. So you can decide whether you
want to do that or not and what the charge would be. I'm
seeing a range, I think, from the Internal Revenue Service
who's currently doing it from 1.95% to 2.75%. So I can't
guarantee right now what that amount would be. It really
is going through Governor and Council ceontracting services.

REP, KURK: Follow-up?

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. KURK: So let's assume it's 2%. What is the total
amount of taxes that we collect, that your Department
collects? Do you collect a billion dollars, five hundred
million per year?

MS. CYR: In total taxes? Probably close to 1.3
billion.

REP. KURK: 1.3 billion. Let's assume $500 million of
this is paid. What's 2% of 500 million?

MS5. CYR: Now you're going to make me do math.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: A million.
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REP. KURK: A million. That's all?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Oh, only a million.

REP. KURK: It's got to be more than that.

REP. CEBROWSKI: Ten million.

REP. KURK: 10% would be 50 million. Yeah.
$10 million. Okay. So the people under my hypothesis, the
people of the State are going to pay somebody $10 million.
plus, if they don't pay within 30 days and they used it on
a credit card they're going to pay 13% up to 30% depending.
So we have a chance to offer the same service, do we not,
and make the $10 million?

MS. CYR: The State does not collect that convenience
fee. That is for the third-party vendor; hence why there's
no cost. Am I misunderstanding?

REP. KURK: Yes. Pretend you're an entrepreneur for a
moment, not a State employee. Okay. You have an opportunity
to make money by providing folks another service. You're
going to let them delay payment or pay in a more convenient
fashion, but they're going to have to give you an extra 2%.
So if they owe you a thousand dollars they're going to have
to pay a thousand twenty. We have just raised taxes in
this state by $20 million at the option of the taxpayer.
So, if you can't save net 310 million on the 500 million,
that's a supposition, and including the costs and so forth,
then your proposal makes sense. But if you can save more
than that, I think there's an opportunity here to make
money, 2%,

MS. CYR: I see what you're saying now.

REP. KURK: So -~ if I may?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: I'm sure she's eagerly awaiting the
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ability to e-File.

REP. KURK: Will you please provide us with what it
would -- what it would profit the State to offer this
service rather than using a contractor itself? I
understand some additional cost but lock at all that extra
revenue you're going to get.

MS. CYR: I can investigate that for you. Yes.

REP. KURK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Especially if we did it for all 50
states. Representative Sova.

REP. SOVA: Yes. The bill says that the Department may
add an amount as a service charge. It strikes me that the
cost of processing the way we are handling the money right
now would be diminished if we went to the credit/debit card
system. If that's the case, why take those people who are
diminishing your cost and charge them extra?

ME. CYR: And that's a good guestion. Again, it
relates to why there's no cost to the State to provide the
cyredit card ability. Because that cost is not being
received by the State. It's going to the third-party vendor
for their processing.

REP. BOVA: I understand -- follow on?

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP, SOVA: But my point is that you should be charging
the service charge to those who use -- send in the checks
to try and get them from sending in the checks and
sending -- using a credit card. Because you're discouraging
people by adding a service charge and them using that.

MS. CYR: I see what you're saying. Yes.
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REP. SOVA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Cebrowski.

REP, CEBROWSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Good
morning.

MS. CYR: Good morning.
MR. PACE: Good morning.

REP. CEBROWSKI: How many positions do you think we'll
be able to eliminate in Revenue Administration because we
are going to -- since we are not doing this manually
anymore? I can envision having been on this on the
business side, we could really do this with a lot fewer
people and I'm assuming that you've really done an analysis
ingide the Department to see where you can save head count.
And I'd love to hear that analysis.

MS. CYR: I don't know that I can speak to that
analysis. We have gone through the budget process, and we
have through the House, the Governor's Budget, the House
Budget and now through the Senate are seeing that there's
going to be employment reduction within the Department. The
Commigsioner and Assistant Commissioner would probably have
to speak to you how they see reorganization happening in
with that modernization. I don't know if Brian can speak
more to the project itself whether this actually is
replacing employees. I don't think that's what the
anticipation was. But it's maintaining busgsiness through
what we are seeing now from cur -- the budget reductions
that are happening.

MR. PACE: There is a current third party that
provides the ability for taxpayers to e-File and pay
on-line. And in time, I would like to think we bring that
functicnality in-house and avoid those costs associated
with that third party.
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REP. CEBROWSKI: Follow-up?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. CEBRROWSKI: You didn't see any savings in head
count, is that what I'm hearing you say?

MS. CYR: I don't know that I can answer that. I could
get back to you on it.

REP., CEBROWSKI: 1I'd appreciate it.

MS. CYR: I think that would be an answer for the
Commissioner or Assistant Commissioner as to how they want
to reorganize and what they foresee in doing it; but I can
get back to you on that.

REP. CEBROWSKI: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Benn for a guestion.

REP. BENN: I just want to make sure I understand.
Representative Rosenwald says that she files electronically
for a bank draft. So that's a very direct and simple
method. What you're really providing here is an opportunity
for people to finance their taxes.

MS. CYR: Yes.

REP. BENN: That's really what you're providing. It's
not the convenience anymore than what Representative
Rosenwald does. But it's really this opportunity, and I
don't think that's a good idea, to promote financing of tax
payments but that's really what this would allow.

MS. CYR: It's the difference -- you're correct. It's
the difference between paying by credit card, which does
give -~ have the 30 days essentially credit that's

occurring versus the bank transaction where you be debiting
right from your account immediately. So it's a different
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type of electronic transaction. We currently do, as the
Representative pointed out for I&D this would, again, be
giving the opportunity for credit card which is a different
type of electronic transfer.

REP. BENN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: We have a request to be just a
couple inches from that microphone.

MS. CYR: Ch, I'm sorry.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Representative Rodeschin.

REP. OBER: You need to pull it closer.

MS. CYR: Oh, closer? Okay.

REP. KURK: About four inches.

REP. OBER: A lot closer.

MS. CYR: We'll speak a lot louder, too.

REP. OBER: You need to pull the microphone closer. It
doesn't pick you up unless it's right in front of you.

MS. CYR: Okay. Is this much better then?

REP. OBER: Yes.

MS. CYR: Okay. My apologies.

REP. RODESCHIN: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Some people
default on their credit card. Every now and then you get
these phone calls that your personal phone and say let me
tell you what your credit score is and blah, blah, blah.
Now can that happen that the Department does not receive
the payment on their credit card or debit card because
there's not enough money available? What do you do?
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MR. PACE: To my knowledge, if the credit card company
-- if the third party transaction company authorizes the
payment then we will receive payment and anything that
happens subsequent to that between that third party and the
customer is between the third party and that customer.

MS. CYR: And to add to that, my assumption would be
similar to if a check was to have insufficient funds, then
there would be follow-up from the Department if that
payment isn't made through whatever type of transaction
you're doing.

REP. RODESCHIN: 8o you do that check. Further?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Further question. Follow-up.

REP. RODESCHIN: You do that check on that individual
before you process the debit card or credit card?

MR. PACE: My assumption it's part of the authorization
process when you go to make the payment fee of that third-
party provider.

MS. CYR: Once you've made that payment you will get a
-- I forget what they --

MR. PACE: E-Receipt.

MS. CYR: An E-Receipt indicating the transaction has
occurred. So through that transaction process with the
credit card company they're authorizing that payment is
able to go through.

REP. RODESCHIN: Cne last gquestion. What if they don't
have the funds in their credit ¢ard or debit card? How do
you handle that?

MR. PACE: I guess my suggestion would be very similar
to you using your credit card/debit card at a store today.
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If your card is not valid or you don't have the sufficient
funds, the transaction would not go through.

REP. RODESCHIN: Okay. Never mind.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Smith for a question.

REP. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. What in this bill
or in other legislation controls the size of the service
charge? It looks like it's established by the Department.
Is there any control of the amount of that charge?

MS. CYR: The control and the amount of that charge is
through the RFP which is a contracting process when we are
hiring a third-party vendor. That would be going through
the Governor and Council approval process. So we, ag the
Department, would negotiate with a third-party contractor
to get the best rate possible for the taxpayers and then
that contract has to be approved through the Governor and
Council process. So it would be reviewed by them, and if
not approved or denied or however that process works.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: We have someone from DRA that's going
to testify next to tell us about the contracts and so on?
Representative Vaillancourt for a question.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Maybe you
can just help me out by alleviating any fears I might have
as to the legality of this. It seems when I was on Ways and
Means we were talking about, and I've noticed you've done
this on the citation tickets for traffic violations and
things, seems there was some legal problem regarding adding
a fee on. Have they got around that by paying it directly
through the vendor? Can you tell me the history of any
challenges legally that have been made to this kind of
thina?

MS. CYR: I know that there has been gome igssues about
service charges that credit cards might attach to it. This
is more a transaction convenience fee. And I can do a more
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legal history for you and provide that for you. I don't
have it with me, but I know that that has been worked out
in the last several years. Visa, I do know, is still in
gsome respects, I don't know if I've seen them in this
state, but Visa you can't pay by Visa because Visa still
requiring their card members not to participate for certain
reasons. They want certain charges or so it's within Visa.
But Discover, American Express and Master Card have all
started participating in this and I think the essential
legal constraints of the service charges that were being
added went away when it's more of a convenience fee; but if
you'd like more information I can get that for you.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Mr. Chairman, I actually don't
know. I just need assurances it has been resolved.

M8. CYR: That is my understanding.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you. Representative Kurk for a
question.

REP. KURK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Another money
making opportunity. In exchange for my 2%, you get your
money sooney. Do I then have a bill that I have to pay on
my credit card? How do I get my money to the third-party
vendor?

MS. CYR: It be my understanding just like any credit
card you're making a purchase, the money would go to the
entity that's receiving that transaction which would be the
State in this respect. And then your bill would come in and
you would have to make that payment to the credit card
company .

REP. KURK: 8¢ that if I had a poor credit record and I
had a 29% rate, I would pay 29%. One of my colleagues
having a better credit record would only pay the 13%. But
"that would be an arrangement that I had and my colleague
had with our respective credit card companies.
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MS. CYR: With the c¢redit card company, yes.

REP. KURK: I see. Further question?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. XURK: The State now charges interest, does it
not, on late payments?

MS. CYR: Yesg, it does.

REP. KURK: Could you tell us what the rates are?

MS. CYR: Brian, do you have that?
MR. PACE: I do not know.

MS. CYR: I do not have that off the top of my head.
No.

REP. KURK: Eighteen percent?

MS8. CYR: No, no. I want to say it's around 6%. Don't
quote me. I think it's around 6% currently.

REP. KURK: Are you going to advise people on the
Webgite that you have a choice of paying the State 6% or
your credit card company 13 to 29%7

MR. PACE: I think the first choice the taxpayer has
is just to make the payment via check or via some other
means without using a credit card. It's a convenience for
the taxpayer, not something we are forcing on the taxpaver.

REP. KURK: I understand; but in order to have =
transparent Website and a fully informed taxpayer group, we
are legislators and we're taxpayers, I want to know the
whole cost. So you need to tell me on your Website choice,
pay with check and avoid all charges. Take advantage of the
convenience fee, get hit with a 2% charge plus 13 to 30% on
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vour credit card, or delay payment until you have the money
and we'll hit you with a 6% interest charge, ‘cause the
State has a bargain. We know what's going to happen if you
give all of that information. Any rationale person would
delay payment and inconvenience to save 6%. 8o here's the
proposal. Let's raise the State rate -- Representative
vaillancourt will not support this -- but let’'s raise the
State rates to roughly the same rate the credit companies
charge and then allow people to use the State instead of
their credit card company and we make the interest.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: I'm sure we're all eagerly awaiting
the bill vou're going tec file.

REP. KURK: Excuge me, 36% or 403%, whatever your
choige is. My point is if vou folks are only looking at
providing convenience, you're missing an opportunity to
make some money and, in effect, either allow us to pay for
other services we can't afford or reduce tax rates.

CHATREMAN WEYLER: I'm sure there's a question there,
but it's probably not one that Ms. Cyr is ready to answer.

REP. KURK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: We'll go on to Representative Ober.

REP. . OBER: Thank you. I'd like to revisit my question
which you did not answer. I originally asked how we
figured cut if this was going to be budget neutral. What
you did, you gave the percentage that the credit company,
the third-party vendor might charge, and you gave us a
range from 1.9 to 2.7. That's one side. You did not tell
us how much money per transaction it now costs you to
process a check so that we could see if we were really
budget neutral. So could you complete that equation,
please?

MS. CYR: As we have in the Fiscal Note, and I was
talking earlier about the $5%92,553, that's the annual
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amount per check when we are processing the checks that
come through the Department. And --

REP. OBER: Per check.

MS. CYR: Per check I'm going to say that might come
down to about $14 per check. In fact --

REP. OBER: What percentage of that is that?

CHATRMAN WEYLER: About a dollar.

MS. CYR: Brian might be correcting me.
MR. PACE: We receive 265,000 checks.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Less than a dollar a check.

MR, PACE: TIt's under 52 per check.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Less than a dollar.

MR. PACE: Less than $2. $265,000 and it costs --
265,000 checks. It costs 5593,000 to process those checks.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Okay.

REP. OBER: Okay. Less than two -- less than $2 to
process the check.

MR. PACE: Plus the bank fees. I'm sorry.

REP. QOBER: Now I need the total fee per check. What
does it cost you to process a check in total,
transportation, everything?

MR. PACE: Have to do a little math but I can
certainly provide you that number.

REP. OBER: I think we are going to need that, because
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you wanted to say it's budget neutral. You give us a
percentage what the third party is going to cost, but you
can't give a percentage of what it cost to process the
check. And s0 I'm not quite sure how we got to budget
neutral. And I know that the Department writes Fiscal
Noteg, but I would have expected that Senator Odell would
have gone over this with you because that is what makes the
Fiscal Note either budget neutral or not. And that's all
Finance cares about. Representative Kurk I know cares about
the fact that he does agree how much interest he pays. But
that's a personal issue that he's got. I know what wy
interest is. I also know that I pay my credit card
completely so I pay zero interest so it doesn't matter. But
Finance Committee needs to be making a financial decision.
So vou've given us the percentage and I understand that of
the third party and I know that we have supported third
parties with credit cards in the past, because we had a
Bill last year on field purchase orders both houses
supported and they are working on it. But we don't have the
accurate figure to determine whether this is budget
neutral.

And my second question, Mr. Chairman, and you'll get
back to ug, you have gaid in your bill, quote, the
Department may add to the amount due in addition to any tax
penalties and interest payable a service charge for the
acceptance of the credit card or debit card as approved by
the Department. You just testified that that would be a
Governor and Executive Council process. I do not see that
in the bill. So how do you think this gets to them when I
read the bill differently? What am I misreading in the
bill teo say that, because that seems to be only the
Department? And if you could point to the line in the bill
that corrects me I would appreciate it.

MS. CYR: The language in the bill is mirrored
verbatim from the language that's contained in -- it's two
-- it's the county and the towns currently. I can cite the
statute. It is modeled after the town statute which is RSA
80:52-¢ and the counties' provision which is RSA 29:11-b
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where they have that same language where the town or the
city then having that charge. The charge itself would be
designated by the Department when it's determined through
the contract process by taking the third-party vendor. We
do the RFP process. We get the contracts in. We review the
best contracts and go forward to G & C. G & C would approve
that contract. That amount then would be what would be
charged. And, therefore, the Department would then take
that in, put it on the web site when they have the
disclosure of this is what it would be paid. So when they
are having the Department it's actually talking about
what's been approved by the Governor and Council for that
rate. The Department itself would not be creating the rate
itself. It's through that process of what the contract
ultimately says if Brian is in agreement with what --

MR, PACE: I am.

REP. OBER: Based on that we really need to modify this
to carry all that. Because right now the bill says the
Department will do it. It makes no reference to the RSA’'s
you just referenced.

MS. CYR: We'd be more than happy to entertain an
Amendment that you feel would better reflect that. We tock
language that is currently in practice with the towns and
cities doing the same thing. So we'd be more than happy to
get language that you would feel reflects that better for
you.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Representative Simard for a question.

REP. SIMARD: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm just trying
to get a handle on what Representative Kurk had presented
as a possible copportunity. And the downside of employing a
third party. And it would seem to me that a third party,
the only benefit we have there is it keeps all of these
transactions at an arm's length. But I'm trying to think is
what would the downside of not having a third party and the
State performing this function itself? What is the
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downside of that?

M&. CYR: T think the downside, not having researched
myself, is going to be the cost to the State in becoming
" the merchant rather than having the third party who, again,
that transaction fee that's occurring goes to the third
party, not to the State. So there's no cost to the State to
get that contract. The contractor's getting paid through
that transaction fee. The State becomes the merchant then
the State would be having a cost associated with becoming
that merchant. Not that that's a downside. 1I'm just
indicating that's the difference between the two.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: You may get further discussion when
Mr. Kehr gets a chance to speak. Representative Benn for a
guestion.

REP. BENN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm always
intrigued by Representative Kurk's ideas, also. I was
wondering if we followed that scenario, could the State
offer frequent flyer miles.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Cebrowski.

REP. CEBROWSKI: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Could you
help us understand where the source of thig initiative came
from? Were you getting a lot of pressure from business
owners or from individual taxpayers or is this purely an
initiative that bubbled up within the Department? Or was
it purely Senator Odell's idea? And what was the size or
scope of that initiative or that pressure?

MS. CYR: I think it may have come from a number of

- different areas. It came from taxpayers and I will use
taxpayers but it's actually operators of meals and rentals,
licensed operators so restaurants and hotel. They're not
the taxpayer. They collect the tax from the consumer --

REP. CEBROWSKI: Yes.
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MS. CYR: ~- and then pass it to the State. In many
instances the Department was hearing from the operators who
wanted to have the convenience of just paying by credit
card. And we had to apologize saying we didn't have that
opportunity for them. It also comes up in discussion
through other taxpayers who are asking to pay their bills
on-line and we didn't have that ability. It also comes from
the fact that through our modernization in getting to
E-Filing and E-Paying and modernizing the transaction and
process less manually and more electronically with the
Department that that's an option we see that that mirrors
what's happening with the Internal Revenue Service at this
time, also. So it comes from a number of different sources.

REP. CEBROWSKI: Thank you. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Vaillancourt.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'd just like
to try to help us simplify because I think we are making
this far too complicated.

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: I agree.

REP. VAILLANCOQURT: Let me ask you this. When you talk
about it being revenue neutral, that is to say that it's
revenue neutral from the amount you're going to get because
the 1.59, 2.75, will make the State whole and revenue
neutral; am I correct?

MS. CYR: Yes.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Let me follow-up by saying it's not
going to be totally revenue neutral. The State is actually
going to make money on this because every time you have to
not process a check, and I don't think we need you to do
the math for us, we can do it, it cost you $2.23 to do a
check. I'm not covering the armored car cost because I
assume you're still going to have to have the armored car
costs.
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MS. CYR: Yes.

REP. VAILLANCQURT: While not being revenue neutral,
it's going to save the State, am I correct, approximately
$2.23 everybody that uses this and does not send a check.

MS. CYR: Yes, you're correct.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you. Representative Belvin.

REP. BELVIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We seem to pile
on issues we think we understand as participants. I'm
looking at it from the taxpayers' perspective and
taxpayers' behavior. Set aside the innovative comments of
one of the representatives here today and stick with the
original model, if you will, please. And the question is
coming. The taxpayer does a credit card payment. Goes to
the third party. You get the cash. It's now up to the third
party to go back to the taxpayer and collect payment. And
I'm wondering how would that taxpayer make the payment?
Would they write a check? Piece of paper? Would they use
another credit transaction? And if I have sufficient funds
rather than go through this two-step loop, I'll just write
a check to DRA and be on my way. How successful are we
going to be in thisg?

MR. PACE: I would add one aspect to that, sir. You can
also make your electronic payment via e-Check payment at no
cost via the third party. So if you have the funds in your
account and vou want to file electronically, you can just
use your routing and check number and make that payment
without any cost to yourself --

REP, BELVIN: Thank vou.

MR. PACE: -- as the taxpayer.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Representative Baroody, I hope it's
the last question.

House Finance Committee May 5, 2011

Senate Bill 56-FN



25

REP. BARQODY: Okay. I would love to jump on the band
wagon with Representative Kurk and make more money, but I
think what the third party does, and Representative Belvin
hit on it, when a third party collects, pays the State, the
State has got their money. The third party has to go and
chase them for the money and our courts are full of people
that don't pay their credit cards.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: We don't care.

REP. BAROODY: I don't think the State would want to
hire a lot of lawyers to go into court to go after credit
cards.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: I agree. Representative Nordgren for
I hope it's the last question.

REP. NORDGREN: I am sorry, Mr. Chair. I agree with
whoever'said we 're making this more complicated. I mean, I
can't even believe it. We, obviously, are filling the time
allotted.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: I noticed that.

REP. NORDGREN: This is till 11 o'clock.

REP. KURK: That's why you're the last question.

REP. NORDGREN: The qguestion -- the would you believe
is that the person pays with their Visa card. They get a
bill from Visa. They pay it like they pay any other Visa
card bill. It's not an individual transaction. And if they
don't pay their Visa card bill they get in trouble. But
they don't just get in trouble because of our charge, so.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you.

REP. NORDGREN: Would you believe?
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MS., CYR: I would believe.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Ms. Cyr, Mr. Pace, people have asked
you to send some information here. How gquickly do you think
you'll get it to us?

MS. CY¥R: I understand that at 1:30 you have a work
sesgion scheduled for this, And I will then shoot for 1:30.
And I can go back to the office, work with John Lighthall
who does our Fiscal Note, and try to get a hold of the
Assistant Commissioner or Commissioner to answer some of
the questions about the employment reorganization.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: You can just call it in.

MS. CYR: Call the answer in? Okay.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: 3615.

MS. CYR: Did you want us back for the work session
then?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: No. Because I'm afraid they'll take
even more of your time.

M5. CYR: We appreciate that. We will be more than
happy to be here if there's anymore questions.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you very much. All right.
Appreciate you both coming in.

MS. CYR: Thank you.
MR. PACE: Thank you.

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: Appreciate --

REP, ELLIOTT: Mr. Chairman, I don't have a question. I
have a question for you when this is done --
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CHAIRMAN WEYLER: I have another person to testify. You
want the answer now or later?

REP. ELLIOTT: Now.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Okay.

REP. ELLIOTT: If there's no money involved, why are
they coming to our Committee if there's no money that's
involved? That's number one. Number two, that they have to
get permission from us to use this system and they can only
get it from the Finance Committee?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: The decision was made above my level
that because there was an FN on this we needed to look at
it and it was to do the exhaustive analysis that we have
done te make certain that it's not costing the State any
money. Because I have looked at other schemes whereby -- I
remember years ago the town -- when the town collected
taxes on a credit card, it cost 4%, and they were not
allowed to have the person write a check for the 4%, nor
were they allowed to add it to the credit card to 4%. So
many towns were not accepting it. But now they have worked
out the scheme and obvicusly this convenience fee is
gsomething that the companies are entitled to collect which
at the time the towns were not, so.

REP, ELLIQTT: Our mission is to make sure they're
telling us the truth.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: That it's revenue neutral and we also
have Mr. Connor who is going to come next and tell us -- we
had some illusions to it, the contract with the State, and
Mr. Connor will be able to answer that gquestion. I'll call
next Mr, Kevin Connor from the Department of Administrative
Services. Thank you for coming, Mr. Connor. With you ig?

KEVIN CONNOR, Administrator, Fixed and Mobile Assets,
Department of Administrative Services: Excuse me. For the
record, my name is Kevin Connor. I'm the Administrator with
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Fixed and Mobile Assets and with me ig Thomas Kehr. He's
the Administrator of Rules and Procedure.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Very good. We are going to get to
that in the next hour, the rules and procedures. We also
have Senate Bill 161 before us. Welcome. Do you have a
statement or you just want to start answering gquestions?

MR. CONNOR: Frankly, my apologies. I was unaware of
this. Commissioner -- Assistant Commissioner Bouchard
called me and asked us to come over to give you an overview
of the existing statewide merchant card contracts and give

you an overview of costs and what we currently have going.

ApproxXimately two to three years ago, the State
realized that many agencies had single source contracts
with processors, Bank of America, First Data, et cetera.
The State then went and did an RFP to consolidate all of
those to try to get the benefits of approximately
$310 million worth of transactions which is about 5 million
transactions a year to get that buying power, to get the
best rate that we could in the marketplace. That contract
was done approximately two and a half years ago. About a
year and a half ago, we got funding to put a full-time
person in in merchant card services that works in our
office. There's approximately 20 agencies that are on the
contract. This contract is Visa, Master Card, most of
Discover, JCB. It is not with AMEX. We are negotiating with
AMEX for a statewide contract now. We are in the second
iteration of those negotiations.

Again, with 20 agencies, Liquor being the largest,
probably about 95% of the wmerchant card transactions, and
that's both credit and debit, run through the Liquor
Commiggion. That creates a couple issues for the State. It
brings us to what's called the Level 2 merchant, which has
a fairly high visibility as far as PCI compliance. What we
know when we talk about cost, the cost in not just dollars
per transaction, what we actually pay the acquire and the
banks, it is also about PCI compliance which is a
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significant liability to the State. We don't have to
listen to the news very often to see what's out there for
credit card fraud, for personal identification. I think
X-Box has it now where people's information is getting
gtolen. We have made a serious and concentrated effort in
the past year to make the State as PCI compliant as we
possibly can. It is a significant undertaking. When we
tock this over with 20 agencies none of them had policies.
Today, we have policies and we are working on a statewide
policy that will go to Governor and Council in the form of
Manual of Procedure that of every agency that accepts
credit cards under our contract will have to sign, from the
Commisgssioner level to the actual person doing the
transaction at the counter. It is significant. But the
liabkility and the exposure to the State is more
significant.

When we talk about costs, approximately, and it's
different, our processor will charge us a processing fee.
Qur current processor is Bank of America Merchant Card
Services. Their -- their fee is then added on to what's
called an interchange fee and the brand, those being Visa,
Master Card, et cetera, will set interchange fees based on
the type of transaction, e.g., in person, not in person,
swipe, et cetera. They'll set those fees. It is
complicated so I cannot tell you that it is 3%, but I will
tell you it's about 3%. That's what we -- when we sit down
with an agency, we do several things. We ask them to
estimate their sales volume that they anticipate that
they'1ll do merchant cards for. We then go through what's
called PCI requirements which is an industry standard set
of requirements that you must meet to do -- to be compliant
with PCI standards. They're written by Visa, Master Card,
and AMEX. We are at the highest levels for that as a state.
They consider the state one corporation. However, we
congider the agencies all reporting entities to us so each
one of them have to do an annual compliance. When we sit
down with them, we say you have toc recognize the costs for
doing business, not only is it the 3% approximate which
you're going to give a negative revenue for the bank and
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the processor, it is also things such as network
penetration costs, application penetration costs, we as a
state have to do an annual -- hire a qualified security
agsessor. This is the first year we have had to do that.
Why do we have to do it? It's based on the number of
transactions that we do as a state. And it then requires us
to have a third party come in and do audits. We finished
this year with cooperation and partnership with DoIT a
walk-through of every agency's processing that's gone on to
ensure that when they're signing off on their annual
compliance statement that they are compliant, 'cause our
Commissioner has to sign over that on behalf of the State.
We learned a lot. We found a lot. We had one application
failed. We pulled that application down for about 60 days
so they were not able to process. It was fixed. It was
retested and put backup. That cost, that annual cost, which
frankly, was never done prior to this year of doing those
testing, could range over $30,000. It could be as low as a
thousand. It really depends upon the way in which they
process merchant cards. If, in fact, it's like the Visitor
Center where they're merely doing a transaction machine,
that's a de minimus cost. If it's something as significant
as the Liquor Commission with 70 some odd stores, each one
of those stores is -- has to be part -- is what they call
in scope. And then they go downhill from there. So it's
going into the network servers.

What we're trying to do, and where we can save money,
is we've established a statewide merchant card processing
advisory work group so that the State can look at
centralizing this to the most efficient way possible.
Becauge credit cards, like many things, have grown-up from
their own seed in their own pots as people needed it. We're
now trying to respect that, but we have got the new CIO, we
have got seats on that Advisory Board from Treasury, which
is critical, we have the security group, and we have some
critical and key agencies on there so we can look at how we
are doing business and see if there's a better way of doing
business. And we know there is, but that is going to take
some time. Those are the processes that we're involved in
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right now. We meet with Bank of America quarterly. They
come to us, to the merchant card advisory group. We give
them topics. One of the topics -- two of the topics they
are going to speak to, one is convenience fees. For many
years it was thought that you could not do convenience
fees. We believe now we can. They are stipulated. Each one
of the brands may say you can do it differently. I am not
up to speed to give you that information right now other
than that's in discussion with Bank of America and they'll
be doing a presgentation.

The other thing we are looking at is like an
e-Wirelegsg payment. This popped up recently where people
wanted to be able to go out, perhaps the Department of
Agriculture, if they had a fair or something they wanted to
be able to take credit cards. They would be able to use
gomething like this. Again, that has a fee. I'm not
prepared to tell you exactly how much that is, but we are
working towards that to see if that is another avenue which
people could conduct business outside of the normal
offices. That's what -- those are my five-minute notes I
was writing on the way over. Is there any questions that I
can mention?

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: Good job. Representative Kurk for a
guestion.

REP. KURK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I need some
clarification. Let's assume that DRA has a $1,000 tax bill
and the person chooses to use this service. The State adds
on a fee?

MR. CONNOR: No. What happens is the person pays that
on-line, pays that via their credit card. It then clears
-~ should clear within two to three days, depending upon
the card, so that DRA would then have the money.

REP. KURK: How much money?

MR. CONNOR: 87% approximately.
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REP. KURK: Okay. And what's the service fee that we
are hearing about in the bill, what's it called?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Convenience fee.

REP. KURK: Convenience fee.

MR. CONNOR: Convenience fee is scomething we are
looking at. It had been thought before we could not do it.
We approached Bank of America and said -- and I believe
that was some discussions that the Commissioner from DRA
had with my Director Mike Connor about convenience fees. It
now appears we can under certain portions of government or
certain business types can do convenience fees. That would
be an add-on fee that the agency would be able to, my
understanding, tack onto that transaction which would be
over the thousand dollars.

REP. KURK: Follow-up?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. KURK: Of the thousand dollars that the taxpayer
owes, net of all fees, how much does the State collect,
assuming we do not do a service fee?

MR. CONNOR: On average, that would be the negative
revenue for fees, that's the acquirer's fee and interchange
fee would be about 3% to the side. We make no money on the
contract.

REP. KURK: So unless we charge the taxpayer 3%
convenience fee, state tax revenues go down.

MR. CONNOR: That's correct. It's not a dollar for
dollar because you have to pay for the service of running
it through the acquirer.

REP. KURK: How can this bill be fiscally neutral?
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MR. CONNOR: Again, I apologize. I had not followed
the bill until I got a phone call about a half hour ago.
We are here to address that, at least tell you how the
contracts work,

REP, KURK: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Benn for a question.

REP. BENN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just to make sure
I understand. If the DRA -- let's say this bill passes, DRA
allows or we allow DRA to use credit cards, would
automatically go through DAS through your program, your
central program or would that require something else to
have it go through on your central program?

MR. CONNOR: I have not had a discussion with DRA and T
apologize. Unfortunately, both my Director and Commissioner
were out of the office when we got a call to come up here.
Under RSA 21-I, which Tom can speak to, I believe it's
statewide contracts agencies need to avail themselves of
that unless they get a waiver from the Commissioner. That
said, I do not know if discuggions have been had at
Commissioner level. Is that accurate?

REP. BENN: All right. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Vaillancourt for a
gquestion.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I thought
I understood this completely and you've only managed to
throw it into confusion. Dealing with Representative Kurk's
question, the reason it's revenue neutral to the State is
because the difference is added on in this fee that we were
explained to by the previous witness. The service charge is
the game amount that the State would, in fact, lose if we
didn't have the service charge. Isn't that correct? Isn't
that how it becomes revenue neutral? The service charge
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makes up for what we would lose?

MR. CONNOR: To the extent that the brands allow you to
charge a service fee to that -- to offset that transaction
fee that would be true. I do not know if that's the case.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: If I might follow-up. The previous
witness told us that they're negotiating rates between 1.59
and 2.75%. I assume that that was what they were charging
us and that was the amount that would make us whole. Wrong?

MR. CONNOR: I can only speak to what's on the State
contract.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Sova for a guestion.

REP. SOVA: Thank you, Mr, Chairman. I guess I'm
confuged as well because I was told by the previous witness
that basically was no cost to the State. It was a cost to
the consumer. And now you're telling me it can be a cost to
the State but not necessarily -- there may not necessarily
be a service charge. And I -- it's almost contradictory.

MR. CONNOR: Presently, out of the 20 or so agencies
that are doing credit cards, none of them charge
convenience fees. That's why we have reached out to Bank of
America to do some investigation and figure out what they
can charge for convenience fees. That meeting with our
acquirer has not occurred.

REP. SOVA: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Keane for a question.

REP. KEANE: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for
coming. The rates vary among the services. Pay Pal, for
instance, c¢harges one rate, Discover charges another to the
recipient of the money. Are you saying 3% is the average or
do we have a State rate of 3% that we pay the credit card
companies universally?
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MR. CONNOR: Three percent is probably a high average
going across all the $310 million worth of transactions
the State does annually. There's two components of it. One
is the flat rate that Bank of America charges which I
believe is -- and I will qualify this aftexrward -- which is
.035% per transaction. The rest of that what makes up 3% is
the interchange rate that the brands establish based on the
trangsaction type.

REP. KEANE: Follow-up?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. KEANE: So my experience running a small business
uging credit cards is I ate that money, those charges. I
lost -- I either priced my product higher to cover it or I
took a loss on that from my net revenues. The only way the
State can cover its cost is to add this additional fee; is
that right?

MR. CONNOR: That's the discussion that many agencies
are now locking at whether, in fact, they can do that to
try to at least absorb some of that fee.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up?

REP. KEANE: And are you -- it was very interesting.
This -- this has to deal with just one agency. When you
talk about the system, how much money are we talking about
that is in that 3% range for all the transactions that are
handled across the system, whether it's Ligquor or whether
it's some other, Agriculture or someone else? Do you have
any idea what that cost is?

REP. BELVIN: 9.3 million.

REP. BARRY: 8.3 million.

REP. KURK: He told us 310 million in transactions
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times 3%.

REP. KEANE: Yeah. Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr.
Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Kurk.

REP. KURK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I think there are
two different kinds of activities that the State undertakes
and it makes sense perhaps to do this for cne kind of
activity but not the other. The Liquor Commission is a
sales outfit. If, by selling on credit, they can increase
their sales then our revenues go up presumably more than
the additional cost of the 3% of all sales. 1In other
words, the profit on the marginal sales covers the 3% on
all of the sales because I assume once you do this, most
people will pay by credit card, at least for the purposes
of this example. But that's a voluntary kind of activity.
The State is a marketer there. When it comes to taxes and
fees and things like that, that's a totally different
situation. The State doesn't increase business because it
gives another way for taxpayers to pay what they owe or a
person who needs a license to pay the fee for that license.
So if the State cannot recover the 3% on average cost, why
would the State want to give this convenience fee for its
customers? It's a lose/lose proposition, unless the cost of
collecting that money is 3% or more. And we can reduce the
cost of collection by the amount of these new fees. Then it
might be revenue neutral.

8o I don‘t -- I guess what I'm saying is I can
understand why some State agencies would want this even if
there's no surcharge. But I don't understand, and I haven't
heard the argument and Ms. Cyr, I'm sure, will come back
and tell us, why it makes sense for the Secretary of State
or in her case DRA, if you have to do something with it why
do you want to give people another way to do it when it
costs you money?

REP. CEBROWSKI: It doesn't cost you money.
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MR. CONNOR: Currently, Secretary of State, Safety,
Courts, all run through the State contract for fees and
fines.

REP, KURK: So we are loging $9 million a year in
revenue and, boy, Division III could have used that in the
budget.. Because we are giving -- well, let's take the
Ligquor sales out. Three million dollars worth of revenue if
Liguor isg 200 of the 300 that we are giving away for
apparently no saving. I'm trying to understand why this
makeg sense for the State. I understand why it makes a lot
of sense to give people convenience, but there's a real
cost to this and real services that are being forgone if
this revenue disappears and convenience where people don't
have a choice.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Perhaps the gquestion to ask is, is
this fee for processing paid in one place so that the
agencies are not aware that the money they feel they
collected is being discounted?

MR. CONNOR: We recently have gone through a process
where we are exactly trying to follow that out and map out
where's the money with Treasury, because -- and see where
it actually splinters off. The other side of that is we
are doing the budget because there is not just the 3%,
there is the other PCI compliance cost that we just barely
gtarted to develop budgets for and this is the first year.
So to answer Representative Kurk's gquestion, it does cost
the State money to offer the convenience.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: But it's not something that like in
the DRA, they think someone pays them $10,000, it shows up
on their books as $10,000. Perhaps the -- if there were any
collection costs they may not have been billed to DRA. They
might have been in this contract that DAS has negotiated
and these compliance costs, you have no clue as to their
full cost at this point but, obviously, they have some
cost.
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MR. CONNOR: I guess the upside would be if you do
merchant card payments, you don't chase bad money.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: So if there's a little less chance
you're going to get a bad check or as you say, you have a
whole group that's just out there chasing bad checks.

MR. CONNOR: Right.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: How much does that cost you in the
past? Do you have any clue?

MR. CONNOR: I do not.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Okay.

REP. KURK: Question?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Who's the collection bureau? Is that
turned over to another agency?

MR. CONNOR: That would be the brands. If I pay my
thousand dollars to DRA on my Visa Card, and I don't pay
Vigsa, then Visa will be coming after me. They're not going
to go after the State to make them whole.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: But if someone wrote a bad check to
an agency, who does the collecting?

MR. CONNOR: I'm not aware of that business side of the
transaction.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Smith.

REP. SMITH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm aware that the
Federal government has these payments for income tax
through convenience fees. And my understanding in that case
was that the convenience fee actually included making up
the difference to back the credit card company. Sco that if
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T as a taxpayer for Federal, I'm not sure how we set it up
here in the State or we're proposing to set it up in the
State, but my understanding is if I pay, the thing I pay
for and I think it's around 3%, which I refuse to pay
because I don't get that much convenience ocut of it, but
~everybody's different and everybody's writing checks for
different amounts. So that's a choice that I have and my
underatanding is that choice, that 3% paid for the system
to put it in, the collection, the issue of collection is
now being thrown on the credit card company as part of
their fee. I mean, that's part of what they get out of the
procedgs, and that whole thing is removed from me, but my
only payment is the 3%. I made the assumption, and perhaps
we could call the division of revenue back to confirm this,
that -- that whatever that contract with that two point --
1.59 to 2.7 that sounds like a better deal than the
original -- than the Feds were able to get. But that would
cover all of that and that would be a part of certainly my
view of this proposal because if, in fact, we are going to
register the 3% discount to the tax, then obviously this is
a strange deal.

MR. CONNOR: It is probably important to point out that
when we are talking about this, we are talking about it
from the merchant card transaction side of it. Now DRA, I
believe, may be looking at it differently. So our contract
ig for merchant card services. If, in fact they're
structured different then there likely could be different
rules for convenience fees. For the 20 agencies and
$310 miliion that are under our contract, that's under
merchant card services. So I defer to DRA if they have
something else structured that is outside of that merchant
card application.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Thank you. Representative Kurk.

REP, KURK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. May we have a list
of that $310 million broken down by agency?

MR. CONNOR: Yes.
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REP. KURK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Okay. We can ask the DRA to come back
and --

REP. KURK: Oh, one last gquestion, Mr. Chair.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Yes.

REP. KURK: You mentioned X-Box. I thought it was Play
Station. It was Sony. What increased risk does the State
have that some of its information will be hacked and we as
representatives of the State will be excoriated in the
press for failing to take appropriate measures to protect
gensitive personal information of State citizens who pay
their taxes to DRA and now find that information and other
information about themselves being sold by the Bosnians oxr
Belarusian Mafia types on the Internet for those who wish
to engage in criminal activity?

MR. CONNOR: First, I believe you're right. It was
Play Station. I cannot speak to DRA, nor their application,
but I can state to the agencies of which are under our
contract. A year age we could not be as confident to tell
you that we are in much better shape today. I think with
the work that DolIT has done, with the contractors we have
hired to do the required testing for the networks, for the
applications, for the processes that are happening on the
transactions, we are in far better shape. Can you -- could
you have a breach or suspected breach? Yes, you could. Are
we aware of it now? We are not only aware of it, we are
doing something with it and the advent of the statewide
merchant card work grcup should help us to be able to
advance better technology and more security.

REP. KURK: Follow-up?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.
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REP. KURK: I suggest you hire an outside hacker for a
nominal fee to test how well you're doing your work.

MR. CONNOR: That is what PCI compliance does. They
actually try to hack into the systems doing positive and
negative testing. We actually give them access, we don't
give them access, and that's what they did for the first
time this year?

REP. KURK: Were they Belarusian or just Americans?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Umberger for a
question.

REP. UMBERGER: I just have a question --

REP. KURK: Thank you.

REP. UMBERGER: -- in regards to the contract. Are you
suggesting that it would make sense for DRA to do their own
contract or would vou prefer that or should we say no, if
we are going to have a contract we need one person -- one
agency to monitor it?

TOM KEHR, Administrator, Rules and Procedures,
Department of Administrative Services: If I may? Tom Kehr,
Rules and Procedures Administrator at DAS. Again, we were
called over here fairly late so we didn't hear the initial
portion of the testimony from DRA. But speaking only to our
contract, the way that it's structured for us is if there's
a statewide service contract that includes a credit card
agreement, that's generally a DAS item. And then there's a
provigion in another section of 21-I, RSA 21-I, that says
the Commissioner of Administrative Services can grant a
waiver not to be on that contract.

That being said, I'm not certain having not heard the
beginmning of the testimony and had some brief
conversations, very, very brief, with some of the DRA folks
here, if we're talking about precisely the same
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organization and setup as the contract that DAS now has in
place. 5o I couldn't answer that question without actually
having a little bit more input from DRA.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Okay. Can we just get -- please stay
for Senate Bill 161 which is coming up next. Representative
Vaillancourt.

REP. VAILLANCOURT: Would it be appropriate to ask
these two gentlemen and the previous two witnesses to talk
among themselves for a couple of minutes and clarify what
they're -- they seem to be doing different things.

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: Excellent suggestion. But before we
get to do that, Representative Belvin has a question.

REP. BELVIN: Thank you for your forbearance, Mr.
Chairman. Do you have any knowledge of what the University
System of New Hampshire does relative to this issue or the
Community College System?

MR. CONNOR: Currently, the Community College System is
on the State contract. Because they now are a component
unit, they're negotiating to ~- they will be getting off
this contract and getting on their own contract. They have
multiple opportunities that they're looking at. The
University System has its own contract, I believe with Bank
of America, for doing their merchant card services. I do
not believe that they will allow Community College to go on
that contract, but that's in discussions with them.

REP. BELVIN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: All right. We'll take a five-minute
recess where these two groups can talk among themselveg and
then we'll get a final --

REP. KURK: Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Are you never going to let them get a
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break?

REP. KURK: Not a guestion. Is there somebody who is a
lobbyist or representative of one of the vendors who might
be here to answer some questions?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: If so, would that person please
identify themselves? I don't see any.

REP. KURK: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: All right. And Senate Bill 161, we
are running a little late. If you want to start putting in
cardsg we'll be ready to get on that as soon as we get a
definitive answer from what appears to be a contradiction.

{Recess taken at 11:15 a.m.)
(Reconvened at 11:25 a.m.)
CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Committee, we'll all come back from

recess on Senate Bill 56, and at least two of you come to
the table.

MS. CYR: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Appreciate the
opportunity to provide some clarity. We have had some
discussion. And Department of Administrative Services did
come in late to the process in understanding and hearing
our testimony. So hopefully, I can provide some clarity
again. We were kind of talking between the two departments
about apples and oranges. The Department of Revenue is not
loocking to become a merchant, which is essentially what the
Department of Administrative Sexrvices' State contract is
with the other agencies. The Department is not looking to
do that. The Department is looking to have a separate
third-party processor for the credit card payments. So when
Representative Kurk was asking, so he has an assessment and
he's making a payment to the Department, through the State
contract, as he testified to, he would give -- the State
would get 97% of that assessment. A thousand dollars they'd
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only get 97%. The Department through this third-party
processing would get the thousand dollars. The taxpayer,
what they would get on their credit card bill would be a
thousand dollars plus whatever percentage convenience fee
the credit card company put on. So the State would get the
thousand dollars. So that's what we are saying that it
would be that revenue would not be lost. It would actually
be gaining through the process of not having to process the
checks anymore. So there's some --

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: You're saying you get the thousand
minus the 3% but you'd save the 3% on the other?

REP. CEBROWSKI: No.

MS. CYR: No. Again, the State is not involved in any
of -~ I can't say 3%. I can cite with my handout the IRS
has different percentages listed. They disclose which is
what they would do on the Website for the third-party
processor amounts from 1.59% to 2.29. So I can't say what
the actual percentage would be, but the State -- the
Department, I won't say the State -- the Department would
not be involved with that convenience fee. You would go to
the Department of Revenue, c¢lick on your payment, you would
be sent to that third-party processor. Brian would have
some names of different processors that are out thexe. You
go to that site. You would put in your payment and they
would disclose to you that with that payment you have this
convenience fee that would be added onto that. So the
State would get the payment for whatever tax is owed and
the consumer or the taxpayer would assume in their bill now
that extra convenience fee that's separate and the State
would not sgee it and would not handle it. And another
reason, in talking about the PCI compliance that the
Department was looking at going through a third-party
processor is because of 21-J:14, our statute for
confidentiality of taxpayer information. We take that very
seriously. Taxpayer information should not be disclosed.
With a third-party processor, PCI, all that liability is on
the third-party processor. They would not be getting

House Finance Committee May 5, 2011

Senate Bill 56-FN



taxpayer information except for credit card information
they hold and that's their liability. The taxpayer
information is secure with the Department. I hope that
provides some clarity and I don't know if the Department of
Administrative Services wants to add anything.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Let's go back to the thousand
dollars. Would you get 97% or would you get all of it?

MS. CYR: We would get all of it under our
contemplation of having a third-party processor.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: That was my impression. That was the
impression of the contradiction. But the cost of being paid
perhaps by DAS. Some of the cost.

MS. CYR: We would not be going through the Department
of Administrative Services. That's a separate --

CHATIRMAN WEYLER: Okay.

MS. CYR: -- contracting process that they have as a
merchant. Essentially, the State becomes a merchant,
similar to if you go to a store and you're swiping the
card, your credit card at a store. The store is actually
the merchant is taking on that 3% a lot of times. And so
the merchant is the Department in that sense but we
wouldn't be doing that.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: You're getting full wvalue.

MS. CYR: We are getting full value.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: All right. There's actually no cost
to you, but for the other functions of government there is
some cost, as Mr. Connor just said to us. Is that clear or
is there going to be 15 guestions deal here? Please.
Representative Kurk.

REP. KURK: Thank you.
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CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Followed by Representative Sova.

REP. KURK: In addition to this cost neutral, not
revenue neutral, cost neutral to the Department approach,
does this language on Line 6 through 8 mean that you can
charge an additional fee to the consumer so the taxpayer
pays $1,002? Sorry. The taxpayer goes to the gsite and pays
$1,000 in taxes, $30 in the 3% fee, which is going to be
added onto his credit card bill, and an additiocnal $2 or
§5, whatever it is, that the Department under Lines 6
through & have?

MS. CYR: No, there's no additional fee. We would
only be assessing if there's a late payment, if it's an
assessment, any interest. When it's referencing that
service charge, that service charge is what the third-party
processor would be charging. The Department isn't charging
it. Again, this is mirroring language from the cities and
towns and counties who are doing this currently. The third-
party processor is the one who would have that service
charge. We are just having it within this language to show
when you come to the Department to pay that that is going
to be disclosed to you 'cause you will be paying a
convenience fee or service charge.

REP. KURK: Follow-up, Mr. Chairman?

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Follow-up.

REP. KURK: You would have no problem if we eliminated
this language all together since the fee that you refer to
ig an arrangement between the credit card company and its
customer and has nothing to do with the Department. You

might advise the -- your customer, your taxpayer, that if
he chooses to use this other service -- this other service
may add a fee on but it has nothing to do with the
Department.

MS. CYR: In a quick legal analysis of that I would say
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that that would not be a fatal elimination if you were to
strike that out if it perceives that the Department is
having the service charge there. I'm going to turn my back
real quickly to ask Brian but I think that -- yes, that fee
is really what's coming to the third-party processor which
is negotiated through the contract. So if this -- if the
language within the bill remained and that line was
gtricken about the service charge, I do not believe that
that would prohibit us from doing what we're -- what we're
asking to do here. If I can just, for a moment, confer
with to see --

MR. PACE: I would agree,.
MS. CYR: Brian is agreeing.

REP. KURK: Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Sova.

REP. SOVA: Representative Kurk asked all my questions.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Barry.

REP. BARRY: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. That means on the
very next line, the Department at time of billing shall
disclose the amount of service charge, you should put down
the third-party vendor at the time of billing shall
disclose the service charge?

MS. CYR: We could say the third-party wvendor but in a
lot of cases what the Department would do they would know
that percentage or that charge that is going to be made and
we would disclose it even before they would get to the
point of going just for the convenience -- again, for the
taxpayer to know before they even click on to go to the
processor. We would indicate to them you can pay on-line.
You may be subject to a such a fee in such amount. They

would know even before clicking and getting to the process
'just to make it easier for them.
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REP. BARRY: Thank you.

CHATRMAN WEYLER: Representative Benn.

REP. BENN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. For you to do this
directly, do we have to change any statutes or any rules to
allow you to do it without going through central DAS?

MS. CYR: Well, we are looking not to go through the
central DAS and that's what this language is allowing us to
do in here. This bill is actually providing us the
statutory authority for us to then accept the credit card
which means we then will put out an RFP, get the third-
party process vendor contract in through Governor and
Council process and not necessarily go through the
Department of Administrative Services state contract.

REP. BENN: Thank you.

REP. RODESCHIN: dJust very qguick.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Representative Rodeschin.

REP. RODESCHIN: Because we have so many hackers in our
country, are you going to make a disclaimer because you
can't guarantee that taxpayer might not get hacked? Are
you going to make a disclaimer there that you're not
responsible in making sure that they know that there are
hackers?

MS. CYR: I'm sure that's something we can consider,
ves, so they are aware of that. But again, all the
liability for any information, credit card information is
falling on that processor when they go to that site.

REP. RODESCHIN: Well, I understand that. But DRA is
very concerned and they don't give out any information on
any companies. That's what I'm talking about.
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M8, CYR: The taxpayer information? Yes, we make it
very c¢lear that the taxpayer information would not be
discloged. Yeg. We would do that.

REP. RODESCHIN: Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN WEYLER: Anybody else? All right. We will
close the hearing on Senate Bill 56.

(Hearing concluded at 11:44 a.m.)
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Rep. Kurk, Hills. 7 A5
May 10, 2011

2011-1818h

09/10

Amendment to SB 56-FN

Amend the bill by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 New Section; Credit or Debit Card Payment. Amend RSA 21-J by inserting after section 43
the following new section:

21-J:43-a Credit or Debit Card Payment. The dommissioner of the department of revenue
administration and any authorized employee or agent/of the commissioner may accept credit cards or
debit cards in the payment of any of the taxes, penalties, interest, or fees administered by the
commissioner or collected by the department. The department shall add to the amount due, in
addition to any tax, penalties, and interest payable, a service charge for the acceptance of the credit
card or debit card. Said service charge shall/be paid by the taxpayer to the credit card or debit card
service provider to cover the provider's cost of this service. The department shall determine the
amount of said service charge through a/competitive bid process, and shall receive prior approval of
the governor and council. The department, at the time of billing, shall disclose the amount of the
service charge to the taxpayer. Thg commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, as

necessary for the administration of/Such electronic transactions.
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Amendment to SB 56-FN

Amend the il by replacing section 1 with the following:

1 New Section; Credit or Debit Card Payment. Amend RSA 21-J by inserting after section 43
the following new section:

21-J:43-a Credit or Debit Card Payment. The commissioner of the department of revenue
administrationi and any authorized employee or agent of the commissioner may accept credit cards or
debit cards for the online payment of any of the taxes, penalties, interest, or fees administered by the
commissioner or collected by the department. The amount of any service charge required to be paid
by the taxpayer to the credit card or debit card service provider to cover the provider's cost of this
service shall be determined by the department through a competitive bid process, and the service
proﬁder ghall add this charge to the amount due, in addition to any tax, penalties, and interest
payable. The department, at the time of billing, shall disclose the amount of the service charge to
the taxpayer. The commissioner shall adopt rules, pursuant to RSA 541-A, as necessary for the

administration of such electronic transactions.



WORKSHEET FOR REPRESENTATIVE KURK

Assumplions:

Gheck Procossing
Costs and Savings
Due ta Credit Gard Use

Checks Processed

Cost per check

NSF

Gost per chack

MAR NSF

Cost per check

Bank Fee

Total Cost Per Year

Cumufative Savings

LY

Taxpayers wili consistently uso the credit card/dsbil card paymeril mothod. Note that taxpayer may use it for sh estimato payment one time and then use a check on
the next estimpte psyment. Stmilarly, o toxpayer may pay a tax bill by credil card one year bul nol the next year.

This breakdown elso assumes the traximum adoplion rate is constant throughout the five years-shown. However, it may be §% the first year, 14% the second year,
8% tho next yoar and 4% the tollowing year.

j‘ - 1 1 ‘{ Year 2 " Year K] 1 Year 4 Year
Extended ,’ Savings | | 13%reduction  Savings !1 Savings | {1 on  Savings | | 13% reduclion
{ i
265,000 ' { i ;
$2.10 SSSGSWGG! I $484,155.00 $72,345.00 i $421,214.85 $62,940.15 ¢ $366,456.92 $54,757.931:1 $318,817.52 $47,639.40 $277371.24
. ; l
. ; i
225 i :- 1 !
1 f : 1
$130.95 $31,488. ‘.3'5!i ! $27.39524 $4,003.54, E $23,833.83 $3,561.38 l $20,735.44  $3,098.40 ¢ $18030.83 $2,60561 $15,694.65
il K |
212 i P 1
1 i ; ‘ o .
$2153 $4,564.36; ! $3.970.99 $593.37; " $3,454.76 £516.23 E $3,905.64 $449.12 $2614.01 $390.73 $2.274.97
! |
1 3
1

$502.553.11) | $515521.21  $77.031.90. | $448503.45 $67,017.76] | $300,198.00 $58,305.45| | $339.472.26 $50,725.74( | $295.340.87
$0.07 $1855000] | $1613850  $2.411.50 $1404050 $2088.011'] $1221523 $1.8252611 S10627.25 $1,58798]1  $9.2a5.7

§611,103.11 $531,659.71  $79,443.90 $462,543.94 $69,115.76 $402,413.23  $60,130.71; | $350,000.51 $52,313.72 $304,586.57

$79,442.40] $148,559.17( | $208,689.88] $261,003.60,

$41.446.28

§2,345.18

$330.94

$44,131.30

$1,381.54

$45,512.94

$306,516.54



Speakers



Bill #

-,
H 4
L ' E) *

SIGN UP SHEET

- To Register Opinion If Not Speaking

: C’(}g Jé‘f . Date ¢/f Ln |

** Please Print All Information **

(check one}

Pro Con

Address Phone Representing

et L - : . o A
oty 4 MU i . L

3 fisk T oS BRI . e
i . fil R %




Hearing
Minutes



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS

PUBLIC HEARING ON SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.
DATE: April 5, 2011
LOB ROOM: 202 Time Public Hearing Called to Order:  10:08 AM

Time Adjourned: 10:37 AM

(please circle if present)

Bill Sp_ onsors: Sen. Odell, Dist 8

TESTIMONY

*  Use asterisk if written testimony and/or amendments are submitted.

Senator Odell, prime sponsor — supports. There was commentary about registration of
companies and using credit cards. Any charge for the transaction would be announced beforehand.
There were several questions about the fee being charged.
*Mindy Cyr & Brian Pace, NHDRA - supports. See written testimony. They noted that fees
would be charged but the state would not get the money. There was quite a long non-relevant
discussion.
Regpectfully submitted,
/"

s P e \

el 07 e Y

Representative Rugsell Ober, Clerk




HOUSE COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
PUBLIC HEARING ON SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

DATE: 4/5’/ (25 /)
LOB ROOM: 202 Time Public Hearing Called to Order: jo -0 &

Time Adjourned: [0 : 37

(please circle if present)

erS"'—RQB Stepa (eﬂ{{Ma rlﬁ‘npﬁes aparet lery,
aughertp@lm/eu \@, y( Oh Sanborw huler ATmy tynskl

b);@nn
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Bill Sponsorg: Sen. Odell, Dist 8

TESTIMONY

*  Use asterisk if written teatxmony,\andlor amendments are submitted.
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Committee Members: ReWE&E
' illanco'ﬁg, Ali?;‘fn;G reia v <CERTgW s Ray WS
ET I§

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

PUBLIC HEARING ON SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.
DATE: May 05, 2011
LOB ROOM: 210-211 Time Public Hearing Called to Order:  10:05

Time Adjourned: 11:15

{please circle if present)

I Bt 5
wombly, Worsman,@ Nordgremi Baroedy, Bériy Lerandeau a

Rep. Kappler and Rep. Chase replaced Rep. Emerton and Rep. Woraman.

Bill Sponsgors:  Sen. Odell, Dist 8

TESTIMONY

*  Use asterisk if written testimony and/or amendments are submitted.

Mr. Cronin, Senate Aide, introduced the bill for Sen. Odell.

*Ms. Mindy Cyr and Mr. Brian Pace, Department of Revenue Administration (DRA) spoke in
support of the bill.

- Provide cost of DRA doing it themselves. They will get back.
- Savings in head count. They will get back.

-Web site — full disclosure

- Cost to process check. They will get back. $2.23

Amend — to show Governor and Council approves contract?

Mr. Connor, Department of Administrative Services (DAS): Overview of merchant cards. PCI
compliant —~ Manual of procedures — Commissioner must sign he is in compliance with.

Compliance costs.

Convenience fees ~ can be charged not sure. Bank of America is going to brief committee. Statewide

contract already exists.

.035 — processor
24 credit card fee

Cost of collection - greater than 3%?



5B 56-FN
Page 2 of 2

Who does collections for bad checks?

List broken down by agency of 310 million.

Commissioner has option to allow,

University System/Community College System have own contract.

State contract — agency becomes merchant. DRA wants to use third party processor.

Foliowing the adjournment at 11:15, the Public Hearing was reopened at 11:30, DAS and DRA
spoke difference between merchant card and

R]spectfulh(\‘s:lbmitte

Rep. Karen Umberger,
Clerk




HOUSE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

PUBLIC HEARING ON SB 66-FN

BILL TITLE: {New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.
DATE: May 05, 2011
LOB ROOM: 210-211 Time Public Hearing Called to Order: D05

Time Adjourned: 1} 18~

(please circle if present)

uptmv s N

Jlerandeau and |

Bill Sponsors:  Sen. Odell, Dist 8

TESTIMONY

*  Use asterigk if written testimony and/or amendments are submitted.
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" City Of Portsmouth, New Hampshire, USA

.‘T".’ﬁ_ 's‘-:'é*

fiede A%

e

oy a R Rl
i City Home |

o DEPARTMENTS City Hall, 1 Junkins Avenue, Portamouth, NH 03801, Tel: (603) 431-2000. Hours Monday-Friday 8:00 a.m. ta 4:30 p.m.
a Assessor's Office ONLINE BILL PAYMENT
4 City Clerk
o City Council *Accepted Credit Cards: American Express, Discover Card, and MasterCard.

@ City Manager {VISA cannot be accepted for transactions other than
T Property Tax payments at this time due to VISA regulations.)
v Community Development

8 Economic Developrnent
e Finance Department

n fire Department

o Heaaith Department

o Human Resources

o Inspection Department
4 Legal Departmeant

To make a payment(s), you will need:

Parking Ticket: Your parking ticket # or your plate #
Water/Sewer: Account # or location and amount due
Property Tax: Bill #, location, owner and amount due

Payment: Your bank routing number and bank
account number; or your creditcard*

© Library information
o Mayaor
o Parking & Transportation Click Here To:
= Planning Department SIGN UP and/or PAY BILLS ONLINE
o Police Department
o p ic W
ublic Works Your information Is secure. All payment transactions are processed in an "encrypted”
2 Purchasing fashion, ensuring the security of your credit card or bank account information. The City
e Recreation Department does not retain or store any credit card or bank account information.

= Schop! Department

u Tax Cotiector
o Zoning Enforcement

Please be advised:

» Bills and fees may not be available for payment on-line until 2-business days after
Issuance
s Payments may take up to ten (10} days to post to your account
o If paylng an overdue Water or Sewer bill, that may result in a shutoff of services,
please contact the billing office at (603) 610-7248 to notify them of your payment
o There is a convenience fee associated with online bill payments...
o Electronic checks (ACH Payment) fiat fee of 35 cents
o Credit/debit cards: Calculated based on the payment amount and fee
assigned by the credit card processor

The convenience fee will be clearly shown before you confirm your total payment,
These convenience fees are NOT forwarded to the City - they are retained by the
payment pracessor. Bills and fees may not be available for payment on-line untif 2-
business days after issuance.

httn://www citvofoortsmouth.com/onlinebillpavment.htm - 3/7/2011



Online Payments of Utility and Property Tax Bills - Finance Department - Peterborough, ... Page 1 of 2

in Town Departmants:

Administration
Assessing

Office of Communily
Development

Emergenicy Managemant
Agency

Finance Departmant

Water Meter Reading
Form
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Peterborough Town
Library
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Pubiic Works
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Town Clerk's Office

Home
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Search
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Online Payments of Utility and Property Tax Bills

Online payments for Town of Peterborough are procassed by Poini & Pay. Point & Pay provides a one source solution for
rasidants to pay their Town bills online, Point & Pay keeps your information securs, and paymants are executed in an
"ancrypted" fashion, so your credit card or checking account information is securely processed.

Piease read the fotlowing disclaimer:

The information furnished on this sile is for the convenience of the user and Is not an official public record of the Town of
Peterborough. It is provided as a service to the pubtic. The Town makes no warranties, expressed or implied congerning
the accuracy, complatenass, refiability, or suitability of this information for any particular use. The Town of Peterborough
assumes no kability whatsoaver associated with the use or misuse of the information. The Town daas not store your credit
card or checking account information. The official public records from which this information was compiled are kept by the
Tax Coltactor in the Finance Office at 1 Grove Street, Peterborough, New Hampshire, 03458 and are available lor
inspection and copying during normal busingss hours for & fag.

Online Payments:

This service will atiow you to pay your utility and tax bills 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Online payments can be made by
electronic iransfer (ACH), MasterCard, Visa, American Express and Discover. Please he advised that there are charges to
procass your payment. These charges are NOT collectad by the Town. They are collected by the payment processor.

Please Note: If your account is in the process of a lien being filed, please contact the
Tax Collector for the correct amount to pay.

. Click Here to pay your Tax Bill.
. Click Here to pay your Utility Bill.

Printar-iriendhy Version

____h_ﬁ_n:__//www.tnwtmFneterborouszl}.rc}”qm/"irndex.rasp?Tvpe=B BASIC&SEC=%7B2E06275C-76... 3/7/2011



Online Payments of Utility and Property Tax Bills - Finance Department - Peterborough, ... Page 20f2

Search Tips

Town of Peterborough - 1 Grove Street - Peterborough, NH 03458 « (603)924-8000

Home | What's Hangening in Qur Town | May Town Meeting | Town Departments | Boards and Committees | Application & Forms | Calendar | Charter |
Community | Employment and Coatactor Opporunities | £ nily Asked Questions (FAGs) | GIS & Maps | Ordinanges & Land Uss Regulations |
Planning Documents | Down! crobal Reader | Carbon Challenge

Powered by 'ﬁ

En

ht.tn;h_'w_w'_\ru_r_._townofneterboroueh.com/index.asp?'lfypng BASIC&SEC=%7B2E06275C-76... 3/7/2011



City of Nashua, NH > Nashua, NH Home > Pay_Now Page 1 of 1

M NASHUE NH
Wabsite Feedback? ;

Home Living here  Busincis & Opportunities  Arts & Leisure  City Governmant Site Map  City Directory Calendar Contact Us

Home » Mashus, NH Home Pay_Nrwl i Search “ Login

O SHARE
- Nashu, NH Home Pay Now ) . o -
1};-0:1' Govermnment
gi-Living Here Weltome to the City of Nashua's Online Payment Service

Efwusiﬂﬂss 2ng Opportunities Yau can now pay your Wasta Water bifls fast & conveniently online via our Xpress-pay service using

f%i“ Arts and Lalsure your debitcredit card {Mastercand, Visa, or Discover card) or elactronic check.

L ste Map To get started you can look up your outstanding bill {based on customer's last name, and billing street

address name) or have ready your most recent Nashua Wastewater System invoice, which includes
account number, bili date and due dale.

Click here to get started.
Other Ways to Pay

o By Mall {mall your chetk with tha cumment invoicedbill 1o the address Indicated)

« At Clty Hall {cash or check)
Questlons?

« Chack cur online payments Frequently Asked Questions

» Contact the Clty of Nashua Tax Collactor's Office
First Floor, City Halt
220 Main Street, Nashua NH 03060
{603) 569-3190

Home | Catendars | City Directory § Contact Us | Site Map | Manage Account | Conlact Webmaster Eﬂ
Copyright ©® 20106 City of Nashua, NH USA. All Rights Reserved

_h_ttn://www.nashuanh, gov/?ay 7Now/tabid/962/Default.aspx 3/7/2011



' City of Nashua, NH > PayNow FAQ's

Home Living here

Home »» PayNow FAR'S ]

§- Nashua, NH Home

- Cay Govesniment

g er

§-Business snd Opgiartustizs
é!— Aris and Leisure

b Sie Map

Business & Opportunitias  Arts & Leisure  Clty Government  Site Map  City Directory Calendar

£ SHARE

Pay Now FAQs ~ Debit/Credit & eCheck Acceptance

Q: What bills can | pay using my credit/debit card or an eChack?

A Al this time you can pay your regutarly billed wastewater charges via credit/debit card or eCheck
oniing. Use of credit/dabit or aCheck for other City bills and fees will be coming soon.

You will be charged a site/convenience fee to condtuct any debit, credit or eCheck payment online. You
can avoid paying the site/convanience fee by paying as before with cash or personal check at the Tax
Office counter in City Halt or by mailing a check payment.

Q: Are there different rules and fees for use of a deblt card versus a credit card?

A A debit carc will be treatad fike a credit card, and processed in the same way. Any site/convenience
faes will ba the same for debit as credit.

0: Do 1 have to contact my bank before using an eCheck?

A: An eCheck is & payment drawn electronically from your bank checking sccount. Using anr eCheck
doss not require a credit or debit card. To use an eCheck you will be asked for both your routing rumber
and your account number, This Information can be most easily obtainad from your paper checks, or you
can contact your financiat institutlon for the numbers (some list routing numbers on their web site). The
rumbers are never stored by the City or xpress-pay.com after the transaction Is complete.

@ How do | get started?

A: To gel started, have your wastewater bill and creditdebit card or check readily available. If you elect to
pay onling you can locate your bill from any internet onnected browser by clicking here or going directly

1D Xpress-pay.com.

You can maka an online paymant using your VISA, MasterCard or Discaver creditdebit card or personal
checking account transaction (known as aCheck} by following the instructions at the xpress-pay.com site,

Q: How are the fees caiculated by xpress-pay.com?

A: Debil/Credlt transactions = The xpress-pay.com site/conveniente fee is calculated as 2.75% of the
amaunt of the bill plus an additional 80 cent transaction fee. This site fee is collected directly by xpress-
pay.com at the time of transaclion and no part of the site fes is collectad by ar paid to the City.

eCheck transactions - The xpress-pay.com eCheck slte/convenience fee is $1.75 plus 0.15% (Q.15%
equals 1% cents per hundred dollars} of the amount of the bill. This site fee is collected directly by xpress-
pay.com at tha time of transaction and no par of the site fea Is collectad by or paid to the City.

G How sacuro is rmy payment and personal information?

A: The City of Nashua has parinerad with xpress-pay.com to process your payment. Payments are
processed thraugh a secured site which usas Secure Sockets Layer (SSL) 128-bit encryption. Cnly the
payment confirmation s provided to the City. Sensitive credit card and related Information are not stored
by the City or xpress-pay.com after the transaction is completa.

For more information, vislt xpress-pay.com

G: Can | make a parttal payment?
A: Mot at this time,

€ How soon will my payment be posted?

A: Your financial institution wilt deduct the payment immediately; however ihe fransaction may take 2-3
days to clear and to be posted to the City's records,

Q: How does the sitefcanvenlance foe show on my credit/debit card statement?

A: Your finangial institution’s clatement will show one credit for the City's bill amgunt, and one credit to
Systems East (xpress-pay.com) for the site/convenience fee.

Q: What do | do if ) can't find my bill on-lina?

A: Only current bllls will be availabie on-lne for payment. If you can't access your bill contact the Mashua
Wastewater Olfice 603-585-3185 or e-mall them &t nashuawastewater@NashuaNH.gov

Q: Can | change my mailing address on-{ine?

A To change your malling address you must contact the Nashua Wastewater Office 603-589-3185 or e-
mall thern at nashuawasiewater@@NashusNH.gov

htm://w.nashuanh.EovaavNowFAOs/_tajl_;_id/% 1/Default.aspx

Page 1 of 2

Contact Us

z Search E| Login

3/7/2011



City of Nashua, NH > PayNow FAQ's

Q: What other departments in City governmant will be accepting Debit/Credit or e-Chack?

A: Although not available at this ime, we plan to offer credit/debit card and eCheck payments for Parks &
Rectreation, City Clerk, Community Development and other fae & bill types in the fulure,

Q: When will the City offer automatic payments for my Wastewater Bls?

A xpress-pay.com Is devaloping an automalic payment feature, At this me you can opt to be natified of
future wastewater bitings via email when you conduct your transaction at xpress-pay.cem. Simply fiil-in
the email field while entering your other information at the time of transaction and check the box nextio

*Sand an emait when a new bill arrives™.
Q: Wil the City offer payment of my bills via the telephone?
A. xpress-pay.com is devoloping payment options via telephone (also known as IWR).

¢ Arg thore plans to allow the use of Amerlcan Express or other Card types in the futura?

A xpress-pay.com is working on an agreemant with American Express. Aside from VISA, MasterCard
and Discover no additional card types are presently accepted anline bul this may change.

Home | Calendars | Cily Directory ] Contact Us | Sile Map | Manage Account | Conlact Webmaster
Copyright © 2010 City of Nashua, NH U5A. All Rights Reserved

httn://www.nashuanh.sov/PavNowFAQs/tabid/961/Default.aspx

Page 2 of 2

3/7/2011



Town of Newmarket New Hampshire - Online Bili Paying Page 1 of 2

- ¥ MewMaLLET M
Online Bill Paying @

PAY YOUR BILLS ONLINE!

The Town of Newmarket is excited to provide our citizens the ability
to pay their town bills online!

NEW & IMPROVED ONLINE BILL PAYMENT

PLEASE * * * pead the page below before signing up.

Bill payers no longer need to search for bills. Bills will automatically link to your new unique
login and set-up information.

Effective October 29, 2009, new login and user set-up is required to use this service.

Separate login and sign-up is required for motor vehicle registrations, to comply with security
and privacy requirements.

Click Here To:
JGN UP andfor PAY BilLLs ONLINE

To make a payment{s), you will need:

Water/Sewer: a copy of your bill showing your PID# and Tax Map Lot#. Click
here for example

Property Tax: a copy of your bill showing your PID# and Tax Map Lot#. Your
"PID#" is considered your "Account Number”, and your "Tax Map Lot#" is
considered your "Record Indicator. Click here for example

Note: You must enter: " P-" before your 6-digit PID number which
begins with "0". '

Motor Vehicle: a copy of your motor vehicle renewal notice showing your
PIN#. Click here for example

Payment: Your bank routing number and bank account number; or your
credit card® information.

Your information is secure. Payments are executed in an"encrypted” fashion, ensuring the
security of your credit card or bank account information. The Town does not store any
credit card or bank account information.

http:{/w\_ﬂ_v_vy.__n__ewmarketnh.gov/indexZ.php?option“;com content&task=view&id=33&pop=1... 3/7/2011




Town of Newmarket New Hampshire - Online Bill Paying Page 2 of 2

Please be advised: There are charges to process your payment: 80 cents for a
payment from your checking or savings account and 2.95% for a credit card payment.
The charges will be clearly shown before you must confirm your total payment. These
charges are NOT collected by the Town; they are collected by the payment processor.

*Accepted Credit Cards include: American Express™*, Discover Card, and MasterCard.

VISA cannot be accepted at this time due to VISA regulations.

If you need assistance, please call:

Town Clerk & Tax Collector Office

603-659-3073, ext. 4070.

Mon. - Thurs. 7 am to 5 pm

Close Window

7 7htgpr:{/www.newmar’ketnh.gov/indexz.php?option=com content&task=view&id=33&pop=1... 3/7/2011
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Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

Features and Benefits of Paying via Credit or Debit Card:

e Ii's convenient - laxpayers can e-ile or paper- file early and make a payment by credit or debit card laler, lo
defay oul-of-pocket expanses. Payments can be made by phone, Internet or when e-filing,

o Tssale and secure - siandard, commercial card networks are used. The IRS does nol receive or store card

nuymbers.
e These electronic tax payment oplions are availeble through servica providers.

» Thereis a lee charged by service providers, Fees are based on the amount of the payment and may vary by
senvice provider (see table below).

» Payment informalion will not be disclased for any reasan cther than processing the transacton autharized by

the taxpayer.

= Aconfrmalion number s provided &1 the end of the phone or Infernel transaction.

L]

Fna "United Stetes Treasury Tax Payment” is included on the card slatement as furtner proof of payment. The

convenience fee will be inciuded on \he statermend as a *Tax Payment Convenience Fee” (or similar
transaction},

o I enrlied in such @ program, laxpayers may eam miles, points, rewards of maney back from the ¢redit card

tssuar,

List of IRS e-pay senvice providers and fees

Convenlence | Convenlence
Teleph
Service siepnone Foes Faes Customer
Waebslte Service
Pi
rovider {Egaﬁstl szf;-d (CreditCard | (ATMDebit’ Number
pant Option) Card Oplion)
1-885-
PAY 1040
Link2Gov Y40 PAY1040.com 1.88B-658-
Corporation 2,35%2 $3.89° 5465
{1-888.729- | Busineistaxpaymentoom
1040}
1-888-877-
0450 (live
BB-5-PAY-
'}fX"‘ A cperator)
| 1.85% $3.897
e PayUSAlax.com 1-877-517-
5828) 4881
RBS {automated,
2417)
WoridPay,
inc. 1-888-877-
0450 (live
1-888-877- operatar)
4450 {ive ValugTaxPaymen.com 2.29%> $3.597
operator) 1.877-517-
4881
{autornated,
2417}
1-888-LIPAY-
TAX™
Omicial officialpayments.comyled 235%2 $3.95 1877754
Payments | {1-988-872-
Corpetatian B829)
. 1-866-964+
. choleepay. ComINABeICHrd 1.90% 1.80% 2652

+ The ATM/Debf card roust be & Visa Debit Gard, or a NYCE, Pulse or Star Debit Card.

? Fial {8e per transaction,
s Conlact the service provider lo recaive up-to-date tnformation regarding fees. The minimum canvenience fee is

$3.89 for 126 and RBS, and $3.85 far OPC.

List of inlegraled IRSe-fifg-ond e-pay senvice praviders and feas
integratad c
ofile Gonvenionce Feasl| Co3tomer
W
Soea | ano welle koGt ex paymant)  Sers
’ a-pay
Oflicial
Paymenls TurboTax  folflicaipaymenis.comiwboliy 2.35%" 1-866-954.8426
Corporaiion ) H
"Fite Your Taxes {File Your Taxesl . FilgYourTaxes.com 3.83% 1.805-644-9398
1-888-877-0450,

“Thittp:/fwww.irs. gov/efi]g/artic]-elo,,idzl 01316,00.html
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. filagning 1Q40.com (live operator}
RBS WordPay, Inc. Droke 2.49%'

1 Contact the contracted service provider for up-to-date information regarding fees. The minimum convenience fee is
$3.95 for OFC, and $3.89 for RES,
% Gontacl lhe registerad Service pravider for up-tg-date information regarding fees. The minlmum convenience fee is

$1.25,

Genersly, taxpayers can make a paymen! through the above-named service providers using an American
Express® Card, Discover® Card, MasterCard® or Visa® card, Taxpayers can visit the service provider's web
site for paynient melhod oplions.

To maks a payment of $100,000 or greater through the Link2Gov Corporatan, taxpayers shouid call Link2Gov
gt 1-888-728-1040,

« Tomaka a payment of $100,000 or greater ihrough the Officiat Payments Corporation {OPC),
bxpayers should call OPC's Speclat Services Unit al 1-888-889-7228.

« Tomake a paymeat of $500,000 or grealer through RBS WorldPay, Inc., taxpayers should call RBS WorldPay
al 1-§88-877-0450.

» For more informalion, of fo make & payment, taxpayers shouid contact lhe service praviders.

» [ndividual e-fie Partners for Etectronic Payment provides 2 description of the service providers' products and
spesial offars,

Accepled Tax Payments vie Sredil or Debit Card:

FORMS | PAYMENT TYPE MAX PAYMENTS
INDIVIDLUIAL
Current Tax due {CY) 2 per year
CY Notice 2 per year
Form 1040 serigs Priar Year 2 per year
Advanced Paymeni of a Delermined Deficiency 2 per year
Insiatiment Agreement 2 per month
Form 1040-E3 Eslimated Tax 2 per guarter
Eorm 040X Amended 2 per year
Form 4568 . Extension fo Fila 2 per year
Form 5328 Current Tax due 2 per year
Prior Year 2 per quarter
Trust Fund Recavery Penaity
inslallment Agreaiment 2 per menth
" BUSINESS
Currenl Tax due 2 per year
Prior Yesr 2 per year
Form 840 serles
instaliment Agreement 2 per month
Amended or Adjusted 2 per year
Current Tax due 2 per quarier
Prior Year 2 per quarler
Farm 841 deries
Installment Agreement 2 per manth
Amended or Adjusled 2 per quarter
Current Tax due 2 per year
Prior Year 2 per year
Forr 943 series
installment Agreement 2 per month
Amended or Adjusled 2 per year
Current Tax due 2 per year
Form 844 sefigs Prior Year 2 per year
Arnended or Adjusiad 2 per year
Cumen! Tox due 2 per year

rh_ttp:/(ww.irr:s; gpy/eﬁle/article/(),,idﬂ 01316,00.html 4/4/2011




Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

Prior Year 2 per year
Form 945 serles Installment Agreement 2 per month

Amended or Adjusied 2 per year
Current Tax due 2 per year

Form 1041 series
Pricr Year 2 per year
Curren: Tax due 2 per year

Form 1085 senes
Prior Year 2 per year

For more Information, refer to ihe rataied links at the end of this article.

PR

Gredit or Debit Card Convenlence Faes

Taxpayers will be itformed of the convenience fes amount before the payment Is authorized. This fee is in

addition to any charges, such as interest, that may be assessed by the credit card issuer, ‘Taxpayers musl
agree to the lerms and conditions of the payment inciuding acceptance of the convenience fee belora the
transacton is comploted.

» The Texpayer Refial Act of 1997 authorizes the Treasury {o accept these payments for tederal taxes but
prohibits ihe RS from paying & fee or consideration 1o service providers for processing these transactions.

o In ordar to provide laxpayers this option, [RS has enlered into non-monatary centracts and agreements with

service pioviders,

» The service providers act In ihe capacily of merchants and are necessary intermedharies in transaclion
pracessing, The senvice providers validate card numbers and expiration dates, obtain authorization from
the card Issuers sad 1S5UB cordirmation numbers to taxpayers at Ihe end of the payment transaction. The
service provigers forward tax payment information to the IRS for posting 1o taxpayer accounts.

+ The IRS does nof recetve or charge any fees for card payments. Additonally, the JRS cannot pay of reimburse
any convenlence fea to taxpayers. Convenience fees are charged by the service providers. Thaleeisa
deductibla business and individual expensa. For an individual expense, taxpayers may deducl the fea as a
misceftanaous emized deduction subject o the 2% limit en Form 1040, Schedule A (sea Rublication 528}

How to Make a Payment

+ ‘The Integrated il and e-pay credit card option is available through a number of tax preparation soflware
products and tax professionals. For additional information shoul e-fiing and paying alt at once {intkuding
cohveniance fees and accepled credit cards), taxpayers can refer 1o lax preparation software of a lax

profgssional.

= Wnen paylng theough tax preparation software, users will be prompled to enter the necessary credit card

infermation,

» Pay by phone end Internel oplions are avaiiable through service providers.

» When paying by phane, a recorded script will prompt taxpayers (hrough the call.

s When paying by Intermel, taxpayers wit be prompted to comnplele the necessary enlry fields.

Tha folfowing infermation Is needad in order to complate a card payment:

itam Instructions
Primary SSN {individual This {s ine soclal security number of the first person kisted on IRS tax package, tax
payments) return or form.
Secondary 35N This is 1he socia? security number of the second persan hsled on the IRS tax package,
tax retura of form.
{optional field)
EIN (Business paymenis) This Is the employer identification number listed on the IRS tax package, tax relurn or

form.

Card Numbor

The accpunit number can be up 1o 16 digits.

Expiration Dale

Entar the four digit manlh/year of the expiration dale (for example, June 2012 would
ba entered 06 and 12, respeclively}

Address (Internst only)

Enter full home address.

Address Info (phor{a anly}

I instrucied, enter the cardhotder's street address number or 2ip code. This should
match the address at which the card statemenl is received by Ihe cardholder. For
exatuple, if the address Is:

123 Main Street
Mapla Town, AA 45678

Enter 123 or 45678, as appropriata.

Ampunt of Tex Paymen!

Enter tha exact amount that you would Lke to pay including dollars and cents,

E.matt Address {Intamet

http:/fwww.irs.gov/efile/article/0,,id=101316,00.htm]

Enter an e=wail address in order to receive an e-mail receipt of tha payment

Page 3 of 4
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onty, opllongt field) ransaction,

Taxpayer's Daylime Entes a telephone number where you can be reached Monday through Friday

Telephone Numbar petween the houvrs of 7:00 am and 5:30 pm. This number wilt onty be used to conlact
you if there is a problem with your payment information.

Facts You Need to Kribw;

Payments must ba made elscironicatly through tax preparalion software, a tax professional or a card payment
service provider wa phona of inlemel,

Cards should not ba torwarded to the 1RS with the relurn or form.

Actount numbers shoutd nist be-written on the relurn or form.

- The psyment dats wil be Iha date the charge is suthosized.

Taxpayers Gan make parllat payments by phone or Intamel if the lax preparation software being used allows
this.

Misttipie payments canna! be made through tax preparation software.

Taxpaysrs who e-fle and e-pay should re-fila rejected returns pramptly in order to ensure timely payment.
Diherwisg, the paymend may have o ba re-authorized through the card issuer.

Fedaral tax deposis cannot be made through these optlons. Amounts not properly deposiled may be
subject 1o a 103% penaliy for failure fo daposit through an authonzed finanaat instilulion o EFTPS. ltisthe
responsibilly of the employer 1o ensure that all taxes are pard or deposited correctly and on time. Pigase refer
to Publeation 18 (Circular E), Employsr's Tax Guide for addifional information expiainng the requirements for
paying employment taxes,

The RS does not istue an kmmediate relcase of a Federal Tax Lien when a credil or deblt card payment is
made 1o full pay the tax Rabidty. Please refer to Publication 1468 for the recommended payment option when
an immediate releace Is necessary.

Cancallations, Errors and Questions!

Generally. payments cannot be cancelled.

Taxpayers car: call the card Issuer or service provider's customer service nurrber {o report probiems such as
uhauthorzed charges or congerns ragarding payment errors.

‘Taxpayers can cantact the IRS at 1-B00-829- 1040 1o repor! problems conceming the amount of tax owed or
&y otner matter concerning the tax retum,

Taxpayers can alsp wrile to the IRS office where the relurn would be malled regarding income lax payrmeni
concems. The impacted taxpayer's S6N or EIN, paymenl tax year, and payment method should be included.

In the event the service provider faits 1o forward tha tax payment to the Treasury, the taxpayer wili be
responsibte for the Lax payment and for any penalfies and interest.

Voluntary or #stimated paymenis such as Form 4888 and Form 104C-ES payments that result in an
overpayment will be resoived through normal adrministrative procadures.

In mosl Instances, the Treasury will refund 8n averpayment (o taxpayers once {ha relurn ts received and
processed. An ovempayment may be used to settle or offsel an exisling debt on the \axpayer's accounl.

Addltlonal Information is provided in the articies below:

Electroric. Fungs Witherawakand Credit or Debn Card Payrment Qnliogs for Businesses

Py Tates by laglronic Funds Withdrawal

Elggironis Funds Withdrawal and Greoi or Detit Card Payment Qpllons for Individuals

Elecironi; Fedrra Tax Paymen Syalem (EFTPF)
Rownlegd IRS Forms eod Insleucions

Page Last Reviewed or Updated: January 12, 2011

ht_to _:_!/w\_y}y:_irs.goy_/eﬁ}e/article/ 0..1d=101316.00.html
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e n ends

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
OFFICE OF LEGISLATIVE BUDGET ASSISTANT
FISCAL NOTE WORKSHEET

Date Sent to Agency:  12/29/2010 LSR# 11-0843.0
i -

Agency: Department of Revenue Administration Bill #:

Due to LBAOC:  01/11/2011 Amendment #(s):

Correction to a prior

response? (Y/N}: No

State Fund(s) Affected:

(1} Indicate here what state funds will be affected by the bill: general funds, federal funds, or any
special fund, Ifit is a special fund, please specify.

General, XXX Federal; Other:
FIRST BIENNIUM SECOND BIENNIUM

‘ Fy 2011 FY 2012 FY 2013 FY 2014 FY 2015
. Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannot Be
State Revenue Not Applicable Determined Determined Determined Determined
State Expenditure Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannct Be
ale kxpe Determined Determined Determined Determined
Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannot Be Cannot Be
Neﬁ State impact _NOt Applicable Determined Determined Determined Determined

County Revenue

Not Applicable

County
Expenditure

Net County
impact

Not Applicable

Local Revenue

I Not Applicable

Local
E__xpenditure

Net Local Impact

Not Applicable

NOTE:

(3} You may replicate this worksheet.
{4) Referto Guidelines for Fiscal Note Worksheets for furlher information.

{1) List only the ameount of change in the appropriate column.
(2} Place all negative numbers in parenthesis.




(A) ASSUMPTIONS: Explain how eslimate was derived. Describe costs that can be absorbed
without additional funding. 1If no estimate can be prepared, explain_ why in detail. if no fiscal
impact, explain why in detail,

1. This law could be administered by the Department of Revenue Administration with no additional
costs due in part to the service fee provision conlained in the hill.

2. This bill would aliow taxpayers to use credit cards to pay tax, interest and penaity liabilities due to
the Department. The bill's language is modeled after RSA 80:52-¢ (Municipalities collection of tax)
and RSA 29:11-b (County coliection of tax), as well as similar to other state’s processes for accepting
electronic payments,

3. Although electronic payment will have a positive impact (savings) to the Department and the State,
and would be beneficial to taxpayers who wish to take fuil advantage of all electronic filing capabilities,
the State Revenue and, thus, Net State impact cannot be determined as the Department is unable to
accyrately estimate how many laxpayers would utilize the credit card method of payment.

4. OQver the past two vears, the Department has averaged the receipt and subsequent deposit of
approximately 265,000 checks. The actual cosl for the Department’s handling of those checks is
approximately $592,553 annually.

5. This bill would take effect 60 days after its. passage. However, before implementation of this
payment method could occeur, the Request For Bid process to select the appropriate vendor would

have to take place.

(B) METHOD: Show calculations used {o determine fiscal impact. Cailculations must aqree with
and explain totals on first page.

Although etectronic payment will have a positive impact (savings) to the Department and the State,
and would be beneficial to taxpayers who wish to {ake full advantage of all electronic filing capabilities,
the State Ravenue and, thus, Net State Impact cannot be determined as the Department is unable to
accurately estimate how many taxpayers woultd utilize the credit card method of payment.
Over the past two years, the Department has averaged the receipt and subsequent deposit of
approximately 265,000 checks. The actual cost for the Department's handling of those checks is
approximately $592,553 annually:

Cost fo process a check $2.10 X 265,000 checks = $556,500

Cost to process an NSF {non-M&R Tax) $139.85 each X 225 checks = $31,489

Cost to process a paper M&R Tax NSF $21.53 X 212 checks = $4,564.36

The State also pays approximately $87,000 annually for armored car service. In addition, the bank fee
for each gheck is $.07. That equates to $18,550 in bank fees.

The cost to the State to process electronic credit card/debit card payments is $0.

As the Department implements the Webforms with E-file and credit card/debit card capability, the




Department anticipates an ever increasing portion of our taxpayer population to use these enhanced
" capabilities.

The Department does not foresee any start-up or maintenance costs. With the service fee provision,
the Deparlment does not foresee any additional costs to the State associated with this bill.

{C) ESTIMATED FISCAL IMPACT (from A and B): Estimated Fiscal Impact must agree with
the totals on first page.

Although electronic payment will have a positive impact (savings) to the Department and the State,
and would be beneficial to taxpayers who wish to take full advantage of all electronic filing capabilities,
the State Revenue and, thus, Net State Impact cannot be determined as the Department is unabile to
accurately estimate how many taxpayers would utifize the credit card method of payment.

Over the past two years, the Department has averaged the receipt and subsequent deposit of
approximately 265,000 checks. The actual cost for the Department's handling of those checks is
approximately $592,553 annually:

Cost to process a check $2.10 X 265,000 checks = $556,500
Cost to process an NSF (non-M&R Tax) $139.96 each X 225 checks = $31,489
Cost to process a paper M&R Tax NSF $21.53 X 212 checks = $4,564.36

in addition, the bank fee for each check is $.07. That equates to $18,550 in bank fees.

As the Depariment implements the Webforms with E-file and credit card/debit card capability, the
Depariment anticipates an ever increasing portion of our taxpayer population to use these enhanced
capabiiities.

The Department does not foresee any start-up or maintenance costs. With the service fee provision,
the Department does not foresee any additional costs to the State associated with this bill.

-

'
{

(D)  ADDITIONAL COUNTY, LOCAL OR LONG-RANGE EFFECTS:




(E) TECHNICAL OR MECHANICAL DEFECTS: Note any confiicts with existing law. Do not
comment on the merits of the legislation.

(F) OTHER COMMENTS: Include tax variables, federal mandates, etc.

If a taxpayer decides to pay by credit card, the taxpayer will be directed from the Depariment's web
form to a third party site that will record the transaction and then transfer the funds to the Department
accordingly. Similar to the municipal and county payment process under RSAs 80:52-c and 29:11-b, a
service fee will be incurred by the taxpayer in order to process the transaction.

AGENCY REPRESENTATIVE PREPARING WORKSHEET: John C. Lighthall NHDRA 271-1321

hy

Approval Name/Sighature
Asst. Commissioner NHDRA 271-2318

Title, Agency and Phone Number
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Safety > Motor Vehicles > Financial

Respongibifity > Quick Links

QOniine_Ticket Payment
Online Ticket/Citation

Payment Individual Ticket P
Individuals may pay for their State of New ampe.t
Hampshire tickets/citations online. To pay online, Warning
a plea of Guilty or NoLo Contendere must be a

EAQs

selected. Uniess you have been instructed to
come to Court in person,or to respond to the
court directly, you MUST answer to the complaint
pricr to thirty {30) days from the date of
issuance shown on the front of the
ticket/citation, OR A PENALTY WILL APPLY.
Plgase see/raad the Warning.

Note: Any plea that results in a conviction may
result in additional administrative action,
including license suspension.

Tickets/citations may be paid oniine up to thirty
days from the date of issuance; they may be
paid on the same day received, Multiple tickets
may be paid in one transaction.

Te pay 8 ticket/citation onling, the following
items are required:

1. A Ticket/Citation issued within the past 30
days.

2. A valid e-mail address.
3. A valid MasterCard or Visa credit card,

4. Optional: A printer.
Steps involved in paying a ticket/citation online:

1. Select Individual payment.

2. Enter the information requested. Note:
Type only your iast name in the Last
Name text box. If your narne has a suffix,
do not include it.

3. Select the RSA (offense) indicated on the
tcket/citation you are paying. The
amount to be paid will automatically
appear. If the fine does not match that
indicated, please contact the DMV, 23

5/5/2011
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Hazen Drive, Concord, or call the DMV,
800-272-0036 to pay the fine, or you may
pay the fine amount indicated.

4. Enter your plea, NolLe Contendere or
Guilty,

5. Select the payment option, enter the
payment informatlon, and hit Submit.

6. A receipt stating "Confirmation of
Payment” or "Declined Transaction" will

appear.

o Confirmation of Payment means
payment has been accepted.

o Declined Transaction means
payment has not been made. If
the transaction is declined, you
may "Try Again” by reentering
your credit card information or by
using a different credit card. If
after trying again, a "Declined
Transaction" screen stiil appears,
you must contact the DMV to
make payment.

7. The receipt which appears on the screen
will atso be sent to the e-mail address you
provided. Please keep a copy for your
records.

Please select one of the following, to begin
the payment process:

o Pay a ticket/citation issyed to an
ingividual

nH.gov | privacy policy | accessibilty policy

http://www.nh, gov/safety/divisions/dmv/financial/otp/index.html

Page 2 of 2
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Corporation Division
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Online Annual Report Filing o
Iintroduction - Annual Report Online Filing

Required flelds are marked with red. QOnline_Annual Report Filing Help | Corporations

Online Filing: Enter your Business ID and click 'File My Annual Report Online'

Blank Mail-In Report: Enter your Business 1D and click ‘Create Blank Annual Report’

Business ID:

I '_ new | File My Annual Report Online 1 new l

l l Create Blank Annual Report ] ,

THE BENEFITS OF ONLINE FILING:
CONVENIENT, EASY STEP BY STEP ENTRY

o EASY TO FILE, just follow Step by Step instructions.

o Oniine filings are paid for with Master Card or Visa, there is no need to write a check. Note: At this time we cannot
accept credit cards with an address outside of the U.S.

You can file your annual report online anytime day or night.

There is NO GUESS WORK in knowing if the Secretary of State received your filing.

Reguired information is indicated, completing the filing onlina prevents rejection of the fifing for incomplete information.
No special programs are required fo file online, only @ web browser is required.

Information provided online this year will be on next year’'s report to edit or file without changes for future years,

No envelope, no need to mail paper document.

Payrment Confirmation Details, and the ability to see an image of the filed annual report are presented {o verify that the
filing was accepted and filed.

e There are no concerns regarding the loss of a paper document.

o The paper form 1S NOT fitlable on line so it will have to be filled in by hand or on a typewriter,

o Secured payment! transaction processing through Verisign.

08 6 0 0 O O

Privacy Policy | Accessihility Policy | Site Map | Contact Us

hitp:/Awww sos.aih.gov/corporate/annualreport/ . 5/5/2011
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Frequently Asked Questions

Click here for FAQ's pertaining to annual report filings.

1. Dol have to reqgjster?

2. _What are the consequences of not registering my _business?

3. Do vou offer information on resources to get my business started?

4, What is the difference hetween a corporation and a limited liability

company? _How does_an "S" corparation differ from a corporation?

5. .Can I reqgister on-line?

6. May we conduct on-line searches for name availability?

7. When I register my company name, will I receive the ID number too?

8. May I get a copy of annual report / articles / certificate of good
standing?

9. What is the status of my reqgistration?

10. Who_are the owners, agents and officers of a particular business?

What forms of payment do you accept?

12. What are vour hours of operation?

13, How do I get a resale certificate?

14, Must a name reservation be filed at the same time as a corporation or
limited liability company?

15. Can 1 file a_ name_reservation for a nopprofit or a trade name?

16. Must I file bylaws or operating agreements with the Secretary of
State’s office?

17. To what address will the acknowledgements for filings of corporations
and limited liability company forms be sent?

does_my_nonprofit gbtaln tax exempt status?

19, How do I convert my existing entity to a limited liability company?

20, Can I convert my existing corporation to a limited liabiiity company
which is already filed with the N.H. Secretary of State?

5/5/2011



N.H. Department of State, Corporate Division; Frequently Asked Questions

Page 2 of 6

Z1. Can_a N.H. {imited liability company convert to a N.H. corporation?

22. Do I need_any other license_or certification to conduct my business?

23, What are my future obligations with the Secretary of State's office

after I register my business?

1. Do 1 have to register?

A person conducting business under any name other than his/her own
tegal name must register. For example, John D. Smith doing business
as "John D. Smith" does not have to register; however, if he conducts
business as "John Smith Enterprises” he does have to register as
"Enterprises” is not part of his legai hame,

What are the consequences of not registering my business?
You do not have the authority to conduct any business {inciuding
advertising) under any name other than your own personal legal name
until that name is registered with this office. The Secretary of State's
office is not an enforcement agency. However, not registering can
have consequences with other agencies or institutions.

Do you offer information on resources to get my business
started?

Information for resources available for starting a business in New
Hampshire may be found at the State of N. H. Economic Development
Division, New Hampshire Business Resource Center official website.
Links to our registration forms that may be downloaded can be found
under Forms and Laws in our navigation bar to the left (visibie on all
pages of our website). You can also contact the U.S. Small Business
Administration at www.sba.gov/nh or call Alice Zachos at 603 225-
1607 or Migue! Moralez at 603 225-1601,

What is the difference between a corporation’and a limited
iiability company? How does an "S" corporation differ from a
corporation?

The structure youwr business assumes is important in determining your
limitations and liabilities. If you are unsure of what entity would be
most beneficial for your business, your accountant or attorney can help
vou declde what tvpe of business structure best fits your needs. For a
description of the types of business entities in New Hampshire, please
follow this link: Types of Business Entities in New Hampshire,

Can I register on-iine?
On-line registration Is not available at this time. Our goal is to provide
this valuable service at a future date.

May we conduct on-line searches for name availability?
An on-line search for name availability is not available at this time.

hitp://www.sos.nh.gov/corporate/fags.html ‘ 5/5/2011
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7. When I register my company name, wili I receive an ID number
too?
We can provide you with a unique number assigned to each business
entity who registers with the State of New Hampshire.

If you would like to apply for a Federal or Employer ID # (FEIN), you
can apply oniine at the IRS website by following thig link, download the

application form here or you can contact the IRS at 1-800-829-4933.

8. May I get a copy of annual report / articies / certificate of good
standing?
Copies and Certificates may be ordered in writing from the
Secretary of State. Plain copies are free for the first 20 pages.
Requests that exceed 20 pages cost $.50 per page beginning from
page one.
Certified copies are $1.00 per page and $5.00 for the Certified
Jacket. The Secretary of State’s office will invoice for this service.
Certificates of Good Standing cost $5.00 each and must be pre-
paid.
Expedited service is available in the office for an additional $25.00.

9. What is the status of my registration?
For the status of your registration, kindly call our information line at
603-271-3246, The line is open from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.
Be prepared to give the operator the name you are registering and the
date the form was mailed or hand-delivered to our office.

10. Who are the owners, agents and officers of a particular
business?
Please visit the Business Name Lookup section of our website to view
the most recently filed annual report. Otherwise, this information is
available by calling our information line at 603-271-3246. The line is
open during business hours from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Be prepared
to give the operator the name of the business you are inquiring about
and what information is required.

11. What forms of payment do you accept?

e accept check, money order, ACH e-account or cash payment. Cash
wil only be accepted if payment is in the exact amount owed. Checks
should be made payabie to "State of New Hampshire". Credit card
payment is accepted for on-line filing of annual reports only
(Mastercard and VISA only). To establish an e-account, you may
contact our Accounting Dept. at 603-271-3242,

Please note: At this time, we cannot accept credit cards with an
address outside of the United States.

12. What are your hours of operation?
The Corporations Division office is open for business from 8:30 a.m. to
3:30 p.m. Our telephone lines are open from 8:30 a.m. to 4:00 p.m.

http://'www.sos.nh.gov/corporate/fags.htmi 5/5/2011
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13. How do I get a resale certificate?
Please refer to the Dept. of Revenue Administration website .
hitpa//www.nb. gov/revenue/taxpayer/resalecert. htm

14. Must a name reservation be filed at the same time as a
corporation or limited liability company?
No, an application for reservation of name (Form 1) is not to be filed
at the same time as the certificate of formation or articles of
incorporation is filed. A reservation of name is filed prior to the filing
of the certificate of formation or articles of incorporatian, to:

a.) insure the name is available prior to completing the certificate of
formation, articles of incorporation or other documentation. In the
event the name is not available, the need to rewrite the forms and
other documentation is avoided.

b.) hold the name (If available) for a period of 120 days to allow that
amount of time for the preparation of the documents, without the
. danger of losing the name.

Note: Name reservations cannot be filed for a trade name or nonprofit
corporation.

By filing the certificate of formation or articles of
incorporation, the entity's name is registered and
protected as long as the LLC or corporation remains
active on our records.

15. Can I file a name reservation for a nonprofit or a trade name?
A reservation of name s used for a limited liability company, for-profit
corperation, limited liabllity partnership, limited partnership or
investment trust name. Names cannot be reserved for nonprofits or
trade names prior to filing the documents.

16. Must I file bylaws or operating agreements with the Secretary
of State’s office?
No; bylaws and operating agreements are not filed in this office. The
Secretary of State's office only files articles of agreement (for a
nonprofit corporation), articles of incorporation (for a for-profit
corporation), and certificates of formation (for a limited liability

company).

17. To what address will the acknowledgements for filings of
corporations and limited liability company forms be sent?
Acknowledgements will be mailed to the address of the person or
entity filing the documents.

i8. How does my nonprofit abtain tax exempt status?
Tax exempt status [501 C (3)] is obtained through the Internal
Revenue Service. Please refer to FAQ's regarding Applying for Tax
Exemption.

http://www.sos.nh.gov/corporate/fags.html 5/5/2011
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19. How do I convert my existing entity to a limited liability
company?
You must file a certificate of conversion, together with a certlficate of
formation and form SRA. All three forms with their fees must be

submitted together.

20. Can I convert my existing corporation to a limited liability
company which is aiready filed with the N.H. Secretary of

State?
No; the limited liability company is created at the time the conversion

forms are filed. If the limited liability company has already been
formed, it cannot be created as a result of the conversion.

21. Can a N.H. limited liability company convert to a N.H.
corporation?
No; current law does not allow for a N.H. limited liabitity company to
convert to a NH corporation.

22. Do I need any other license or certification to conduct my
business?
There is no further licensing with this office, however, there may be a
requirement for a license or certificate from another agency. Follow
this link, www.nhes.state.nh.us/elmiflicertreg.htm to find out if you
need additional licensing or certification.

23. What are my future obligations with the Department of State's
office after I register my business?

Corporation, Professional An annual report and filing fee
Corporation, Limited Liability for these business types is due
Company, Professional Limited by April 1st of each year
Liability Company, Consumer following the year of registration

Cooperative, Business Trust

Investment Trust, Limited An annual filing fee for these
Liability Partnership, Agricultural | business types is due by April
Cooperative 1st of each year following the

year of registration

Trade Name Must be renewed every five (5)
years to remain active

Nonprofit A report and filing fee for these
business types is due by
December 31st every five (5)
years pursuant to RSA 292

http://www sos.nh.gov/corporate/fags.htm] 5/5/2011
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2 DEPARTMENTS

o Aggassor's Office

# City Clerk

= City Council

= City Manager

a Community Development
r Egonomic Development
®# Finance Dapartment

a Fire Department

o Health Department

o Human Rasources

e Inspection Department
= tegal Department

o Library

2 Mayor

o Parking & Transportation
# Planning Department

a pPolice Department

o Public Works

o Purchasing

o Recreation Department
a School Department

= Yax Collactor
& Zoning Enforcement

Offgin Municipal Wobtlie i in, . e

N o “Q"r\_ e i o . %

panit STy
1 BESTHOMIN!

f
- S
{ City Home |
LChty Hall, 1 Junkins Avenua, Portsmouth, NH 03801, Tel: (603} 431-2000. Heurs Monday-Friday B:00 #.m. ta 4:30 p.m.

ONLINE BILL PAYMENT

*Accepted Credit Cards: American Express, Discover Card, and MasterCard.
(VISA cannot be accepted for Eransactions other than
Property Tax payments al this time due to VISA regulations.)

To make a payment(s), you will need:

Parking Ticket: Your parking ticket # or your plate #

water/Sewer: Account # or location and amount due

Property Tax: Bill #, location, owner and amount due

Payment: Your bank routing number and bank
account number; or your creditcard*
infarmation

Click Here To:
SIGN UP and/or PAY BILLS ONLINE

Your Informatlon is secure. All payment transactions are processed in an "encrypted”
fashlon, ensuring the security of your credit card or bank account Information. The City
does not retain or store any credit card or bank account information.

Please be advised:

« Bilis and fees may not be available for payment on-line until 2-business days after
issuance
o Payments may take up to ten (10} days to post to your account
o If paying an overdue Water or Sewer bill, that may result in a shutoff of services,
please contact the bliling office at (603) 610-7248 to notify them of your payment
¢ There is a convenience fee assoclated with oniine bill payments...
¢ Electronic checks (ACH Payment) flat fee of 35 cents
o Credit/debit cards: Calculated based on the payment amount and fee
assigned by the credlt card processor

The convenience fee will be clearly shown before you confirm your total payment.
Thase convenience fees are NOT forwarded to the City - they are retained by the
payment processor. Bills and fees may not be available for payment on-line untif 2-
business days after issuance.

http:/Awww cityofportsmouth.com/onlinebillpayment.htm 3/7/2011
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Administration
Assessing

Office of Community
Development

Emergency Management
Agency ‘

Finance Department

Water Meter Reading
Form

Fire and Rescue

Paterborough Town
Library

Police Department
Public Works
Recreation Dopartment
Town Clerld's Office

Home )

wWhal's Happening in Our
Town

May Town Meeatin
Town Departmants
Boards and Committees

-]
Apﬁlication & Forms

Calendar
Charter
Communi
Employment and

Contractor Oﬁportun'ities

Frequontly Askeod
Questions (FAQs

GIS & Ma
Ordinances & iLand Use

Regulations )

Planning Documants

Downioad Acrobal Readar

Carbon Challenge

Search
Sof
(&) Ful Sits
O This Section

HAMPS HIRTE. &

D It e, catrih Ao S, A i Faa N b bl 4 L g B sl TR

Online Payments of Utility and Property Tax Bills

Onlire payments for Town of Peterborough are processed by Point & Pay. Point & Pay provides a one source solution for
residents to pay their Town bills onfine. Point & Pay keeps your information secure, and payments are executed in an
*anceypted” fashion, so your cradit card or checking account information is securely processed.

Please read the following disclaimer:

The information furnished on this site Is for the convenience of the user and is not an official public record of the Town of
Paterborough. it is provided as a seivice fo the public. The Town makes no warranties, expressed or implied concerming
tha accuracy, complatenass, refiability, or suitability of this information for any particular use. The Town of Peterbarough
assumes na Hiability whatsosver associated with the use or misuse of the information. The Town does not store your credit
card or checking account information. The cfficial public records from which this information was compiled are kept by the
Tax Coliactor in the Finance Office at 1 Grove Street, Peterborough, New Hampshire, 03458 and are availabls for
inspection angd copying during normal businass hours for a fee.

Online Payments:

This service will altow you to pay your utility and tax bills 24 hours a day, 7 days a week. Online payments can be made by
electronic transfer (AGH), MasterCard, Visa, American Express and Discaver. Please be advised that there are charges fo
process your payment. These charges are NOT collected by the Town. They are collected by the payment processor.

Pieass Note: If your account is in the process of a lien being filed, please contact the
Tax Collector for the correct amount to pay.

. Click Here to pay your Tax Bill.
. Click Here to pay your Utility Bill.

http://www.townofpeterborough.com/index.asp?Type=B_BASIC&SEC=%7B2E06275C-76... 3/7/2011
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Search Tips

Town of Peterborough - 1 Grove Street - Peterborough, NH 03458 - (603)924-8000

Home | iWhat's Happening in Qur Tawn | May Town Meeting | Town Departments | Boards and Commitiges | Application & Forms, | Calendar | Charter |
Commupity | Emdiovment end Contractor Opportuniies | Frequentiy Asked Quastions (FAQs) | G!S & Maps | Ordinances & Land Use Regulations |
- Planning Documents | Download A t Reader | Carbon Challenge

Paveered by

gy

http://www.townofpeterborough.com/index.asp?Type=B_BASIC&SEC=%7B2E06275C-76... 3/7/2011
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Websile Feegback?

Home Living here Business & Opportunities  Arts & Lelsure  City Govermment  Site Map  City Directory  Calendar Contact Us

Home » Nashua, NH Home » Pay,_-NnWI | Search ll Login

£ SHARE
[+ Nashua, NM Home Pay Now o i
Egl:i Chy Goverament
B Living Here Welcome to the City of Nashua's Online Payment Service

f.}'" Businass and Opparuriiies You can now pay your Waste Water bills fast & conveniently online via our Xpress-pay service using
your debivcredit card {Mastercard, Visa, or Discover card) or efecironic chack.

To get started you can look up your outstanding bill (based on customer's l2st name, and billing street
addrasa nama) or have ready your most racent Nashua Wastewater System Invoice, which inciudes

account numper, bill date and due date.

[;L',L Arts and |2isure
I site mzp )

Click here to get started.
Other Ways to Pay

« By Mall {mail your check with the current inveice/bill to the address Indicated)
» At City Hall {cash or check)

Questions?
» Check our online payments Frequently Asked Questions

» Contact the City of Nashua Tax Collector's Office

First Fioor, City Hall
229 Main Street, Nashua NH 03060
{603) 559-3190

Home | Calendars | City Directory | Centact Us | Site Map | Manage Accourd | Contact Webmaster
Capyright ) 2010 City of Nashua, NH USA. All Rights Reserved

http://www.nashuanh.gov/Pay Now/tabid/962/Default.aspx 3/7/2011
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Webnite Feeabackij

Home Llving here  Businoss & Opportunitios  Arts & Leisure  City Government  Site Map  Clty Directory  Calendar Contact Us

Horne » PayNow FAQ's I Search 1] Login

A SHRRE
- Nashua, NH Home Pay Now FAQs ~ Debit/Credit & eCheck Acceptance
éhc[zy Govermment
$—mng Here Q: What blils can | pay using my credit/debit card or an eCheck?

t;?-ﬂusiness and Opportuntiics A At this time you can pey your regularly billed wastewater charges via credit/debit card or eCheck
d,;“ Arts and Leisure anline. Use of credit/debit or eChack for other City bills and fees will be coming soon.

L-sta Mep You will be charged a site/convenience fee to conduct any debit, credit or eCheck payment online. You
can avoid paylng the site/convenience fee by paying as before with cash or personal check at the Tax

Office counter [n City Hall or by mailing a check paymant.

Q: Are there diffarent rules and fees for use of a debit card versus a credit card?

A: A debit card wilt be treated like a credit card, and processed in the same way. Any site/convenience
fees witt be the same for debit &s cradit,

Q: Do | have to contact my bank before using an eChock?

A: An eCheck is a payment drawn electronically from your bank checking account. Using an eCheck
tioes not require a credit or debit card. To use an eCheck you wilt be asked for both your routing number
and your account number. This information can be most easily obiained from your paper checks, or you
can contact your financial institution for the numbers (some list routing numbers on their web site). The
numbers are naver stored by the City or xpress-pay.com after the transaction is complate.

Gi: How do { get started?

A To gel started, have your wastawater bill and credit/debit card or check readily available. if you elect to
pay onkne you can locate your bill from any internel connected browser by clicking here or going directly
1o xpress-pay.com.

You can make pn online payment using your ViSA, MasterCard or Discover credit/debit card or personal
chacking account transaction {known as eCheck) by following e instructions at the xpress-pay.com site.

Q: How ara the fees calculated by xpress-pay.com?

A: DebittCredit ransactions - The xprass-pay.com site/convenience fes is calculated as 2.75% of the
amount of the bill plus an additional 60 cenl transaction fes. This site fee is collected directly by xpress-
pay.com at the time of transaction and no part of the site fae is collected by or paid to the City.

aCheck transactions - The xpress-pay.com eCheck site/convenience fee Is $1.75 plus 0.16% (0.15%
squais 15 cents per hundred doltars) of the amount of the bill. This site fee is collected direetly by xpress-
pay.con at the time of transaction and na part of the site fes is collected by or paid to the City.

Qi: How secure Is my payment and personal information?

A: The City of Nashua has parinered with xpress-pay.com to process your payment. Payments sre
processed through a secured site which uses Secure Sockets Layer (S5L) 128-bit encryption. Only the
paymant confirmation is provided to the City. Sensitive credi card and related information are not stored
by the City or xpress-pay.com after the transaction is complate.

For miore information, visit xpreas-pay.com

&: Can I make a partial payment?
Az Not at this lime,

Q: How soon will my payment be posted?

A: Your financial institution will daduct the payment immediataly, however the transaction may take 2-3
days 10 clear and !0 be posted to the Clty's records.

Q: How does the sltelcanvenience fes show on my credit/debit card statement?

A: Your financial institution’s statement wili show one credil for the City's bill amount, and one credit to
Systems Eost (xpress-pay.com) for the sile/convenience fee.

Q: What do | do If 5 can't find my biil an-line?

A: Only cuerent bilis witt be availabie on-fine for payment. It you ean’t access your bill contact the Nashua
Wasiewater Office 603-589-3185 or e-mail them at nashuawsastewaier@NashuaNH.gav

@: Gantchange my malllag address on-line?

A: To change your mailing address you must cantact the Nashua Wastewater Office 603-585-3195 ore-
mail them at nashuswasiewaler@NashuatH gov

http://www.nashuanh.gov/PayNowF AQs/tabid/961/Default. aspx 3/7/2011
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Q: What othor departments In City gevernment wilk be accepting DebIUCredit or 8-Chack?

A: Although not available at this time, we plan to offer credit/debit card and eChack payments for Parks &
Recreniion, City Clerk, Community Development snd other fee & bill typss in the future.

Q: When wliil the Clty offer automalic payments for my Wastewater Bills?

A xprass-pay.com is develfoping an autormatic payment feature. At this time you can opt to be notified of
future wasiewater bifings via email when you conduct your transaction at xpress-pay.com. Simply fiti-in
the email field while entering your othar informatian at the time of transaction and check the box next to

*Send an email whan a new bill arrives”.
Q: Will the City offer payment of my bills via the telephone?
A xpress-pay.com is doveloping paymant options via telephana {also known as IVR).

Q: Are thero pians to ailow the use of American Express or other Card types in the future?

A %press-pay,com is working on an agreement with American Express. Aside from VISA, MasterCard
ond Discover ne additional card types are presantly accepted antine but this may change.

Home | Calendars | City Directory | Contact Us | Sile Map | Manage Account | Contact Webmaster
Copyright © 2010 City of Nashua, NH USA. All Rights Reserved .

http://www.nashuanh.gov/PayNowFAQs/tabid/961/Default.aspx 3/7/2011
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Online Bill Paying 0

PAY YOUR BILLS ONLINE!

The Town of Newmarket is excited to provide our citizens the ability
to pay their town bills online!

NEW & IMPROVED ONLINE BILL PAYMENT

PLEASE * * * read the page below before signing up.

Bill payers no longer need to search for bills. Bills will automatically link to your new unique
login and set-up information.

Effective October 29, 2009, new login and user set-up is required to use this service.

Separate login and sign-up is required for motor vehicle registrations, to comply with security
and privacy requirements.

Click Here To:
SIGN UP and/or PAY BILLs ONLINE

To make a payment(s), you will need:

Water/Sewer: a copy of your bill showing your PID# and Tax Map Lot#. Click
here for example

Property Tax: a copy of your bill showing your PID# and Tax Map Lot#. Your
"PID#" is considered your "Account Number”, and your "Tax Map Lot#" is
considered your "Record Indicator. Click here for example

Note: You must enter: " P-" before your 6-digit PID number which
begins with "0".

Motor Vehicle: a copy of your motor vehicle renewal notice showing your
PIN#. Click here for example

Payment: Your bank routing number and bank account number; or your
credit card* information.

Your information is secure. Payments are executed in an"encrypted" fashion, ensuring the
security of your credit card or bank account information. The Town does not store any
credit card or bank account information.

http://www.newmarketnh.gov/index2 php?option=com_content&task=view&id=33&pop=1... 3/7/2011
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Please be advised: There are charges to process your payment: 80 cents for a
payment from your checking or savings account and 2.95% for a credit card payment.
The charges will be clearly shown before you must confirm your total payment. These
charges are NOT collected by the Town, they are collected by the payment processor.

*Accepted Credit Cards include: American Express™*, Discover Card, and MasterCard.

VISA cannot be accepted at this time due to VISA regulations.

If you need assistance, please call;
Town Clerk & Tax Collector Office

603-659-3073, ext. 4070.

Mon. - Thurs. 7 am to 5 pm

Close Window

hitp://www.newmarketnh.gov/index2.php?option=com_content&task=view&id=33&pop=1... 3/7/2011
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Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

¥ IR S .gov

Pay Taxes by Cradit or Debit Card
Features and Benefits of Paying via Credit or Debit Card:

i's coavenient - kaxpayers can e-file or paper- fila early and make 8 payment by credit or debit card iater, io
delay out-ol-pocket expenses. Payments ¢can be made by phone, internat or when e-filing.

o I's safe arid secure « standard, commercist card networks are used. The IRS does nol recelve or stare card

+ These fectonic tx payment oplions are avaliable through service praviders,

There is a fes charged by service providers, Fees are based on the amount of lhe payment and may vary by
service provider (see tabla below),

Paymertinformalion wik not ba disciosed for any reason other than processing ihe Iransaction authorized by
the. laxpayer.

s A confirmation numiber 13 provided at the end of the phone o Intemet transaclion,

o The *Uniled Stales Treasury Tax Payment” is included on the card sialement as further proof of payment. The
convenience fee will be included on the statement as a “Tax Payment Convenlence Fee® (or simitar
transactior).

» if enrolled in such 2 program, faxpayers may sarn miles, points, rewards of money hack from the credil card
S8UET.

List of IRS e-pay servica providers and fees

Convenlence | Convenlence
Servics Telephene Fees Foes Customer
Provider | (Engish and Wabslte ) SGWEB
Spanish) {Credit Cand {(ATM/Debit umber
P Option)} Card Opllon}
+-B88-
Lnkagoy | PRYIONOT PAY1940 com 535% £3.00 1.8B8-658-
Corporation (1.886-729- 151 QLS T 5465
1040}
§-888-877-
0450  (live
1.888-9-FPAY-
AN operator)
1.95%3 3.89%
(1587 rayUSAtax.com § E77-517-
9679 4881
R’ {automated.,
8BS ’ 2417)
WotldPay, -
Ine. 1-888-877-
0450 (live
1-888-877 operatar)
S0 {ive V| 1. 2.29%? 897
o ttlm ‘lugToxPayment.com 83 §.877.517-
4881
{automated,
2417)
1.688-UPAY-
TAKe 1-877.754
Officiat ofliciatnayments.com/ind 2.35%7 $3.95? hriiias
Paymenis {1-809.872-
Corporation esze}
’ 5 1-866-964-
- chrigepey,cominastercerd 1.90%7 1.90% o552

' Tha ATM/Debit card must bo a Visa Debil Card, or a NYCE, Pulse or Star Debil Card.

2 Flal fes per wgnsaclion.
* Contact the service provider 1o recelve up-to-data Information regarding fees. The minimum canvenience fee is

£3.89 lor 1L2G and RBS, sod $3.95 tor OPC.

List of inlegrated IRSe-file and e-pay semcg__g'oviﬁers and fees

integrated c
ustomer
Service 1 a;;lgo Wabsite (C.,/m:;g;a": a::::) Service
Provider “ pay! Number
_apay
Official ]
Paymenis TurboTex  Hofficialpayments.cemiurbotax 2.35%! 1-866-954-8426
Corporatién

File Your Taxes §File Your Taxes| FileYourTaxes.som 3.93%2 1-805-644-9398)
1-888-877-0450

http://www.irs, gov/efile/article/0,,id=101316,00.html 4/4/2011
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lieuning. {H40,50m I

Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

2.49%1

{live operatar)

1 Contac! the controcied service provifler for up-lo-dale information regarding fees. The minimum convenience fee is

$3.95 fer OPC, and §3.89 for RBS.

2 Contacl the registered service pravider for up-to-dale information regarding fees, The minimum convenience lee Is

$1.25.

» Generally, IBxpayers can make a payment through lhe above-named service providers using an American
Express® Card, Discover® Card, MasterCard@ or Visa® card. Taxpayers can visit the service provider's web

. sHe for payment miathod options,

« To ake a payment of $1084,800 ar greater through the Link2Gov Corporalion, laxpayers should call Link2Gov

at 1.888-729-1040,

= Tomaka & payment of $100,000 or greater through the Official Peymenis Corporation {OFC),
iaxpayers should call OPC's Special Services Unit al 1-885-889-7228.

» Tomake a payment of 50000 or greater through RBS WarldPay, Inc.. laxpayers should call RBS WorldPay

ol 1-898-§77-0450,

« ‘For more information, or to smaks i payment, laxpayers should contact the service providers,

o indivigual e-file-Pariners foe Eigctronic Payment provides a description of the service providers® products and

special offers. .

Accepted Tax Payments via Credit or Debll Card:

© ‘Form 541 serips

~ FORMS i PAYMENT TYPE MAX PAYMENTS
INDIVIDUAL
Current Tax due [CY} 2 per year
. CY Notica 2 per year
Form. 1040 serles Prior Year 2 per year
Advanced Payment of a Determined Deficiency 2 per year
insiatiment Agreement 2 per month
Form 1040-E3 Estimated Tax 2 per quarter
] Form 1040-X Amended 2 per year
" " Porm 4868 ) Extanston o File 2 per year
' ' Form5329 Current Tax dus 2 per year
Prior Year 2 per quarler
Trust Fund Recovery Penally
. : Instatiment Agreement ~ 2 per month
BUSINESS
Current Téx due 2 per year
Prior Year 2 per year
Form 940 series
Installment Agreement 2 per month
Amended or Adjustad 2 per year
Cument Tax due 2 per quarter
- ' Pripr Year 2 per quarler

http://www.irs.gov/efile/article/0,,1d=101316,00.htmi

Inslallment Agreement 2 per month
Amended or Adjusled 2 per quarter
Current Tax due 2 per year
Prior Year 2 per year
Farm 943 seres
o Instaliment Agreement 2 per month
Amanded or Atjusied 2 per year
Current Tax due 2 per year
“ Form 944 senes Prior Year 2 par year
Amendad or Adjusted 2 per year
; . Current Tax.due "2 per yaar

Page 2 of 4
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Pay Taxes by Credit or Debit Card

h ’ Prior Year 2 per year
" Forn 845 series instalimend Agreemant 2 per manih
Amended or Adjusted 2 per year
Current Tax due 2 pef year
Faim 1041 seres
Prior Year 2 per year
- Cutren! Tax due 2 per year
Form 1085 sefies
Prior Year 2 per year

For more information, refar jo the felated finks al lhe end of this articks.

e g sty

Credit or Debit Card Convenience Fees

. Taxﬁéyers wil-be Tidormed of the danvenience fes amound bafore the payment 1s authorized, This fee is in

nldition to any charges. suofy ps interest, ihat may be assessed by the cradit card issuer. Taxpayers tnust
“agree to the terms and cordillonis of the payment incheding acceplanca of the convenience fee before the
ransaction ia complétad,

« The Taxpayer Relief Act of 1997 authorizes the Treasury 1o accept these payments for federal laxes bul
prohibeds the IRS from paying a fee or consideralion to service providers for processing these transactions.

--setvice providers,

in wrder 16 provide iexpayers this oplion, IRS has enlered into non-manetary contracts and agreements with

The.service providets act in iie capacity of merchanis and are necessary Intermediaries in iransaclion

processing, The sérvce providers validate card numbers and expiration dates, obtain authorization from

e card Issuers and jssus confirmation numbers |0 1axpayers al the end of the payment transaction. The
service providers farwand tax payment inforrabion (o ihe IRS for posling to taxpayer accounts.

» The IRS dods not recefve or-charge any fees for card payments. Additionally, the IRS cannat pay or reimburse
any convenience fee in taxpayers. Conveniance fees are charged by the service providers, The le¢is a
daductible business and individual expense. For an individual expense, taxpayers may deduct the fee as 8
miscellaneous itemized deduction subject o the 2% Nimit on Form 1040, Schedule A [see Publicatjon 528).

How to Make a Payment

The integrated e-file end e-pay credit card option Is avallabie through a number of tax preparalion software

preducts and tdx professionaks, For additionas information about e-filing and paying all at ance {including
convenience fees and accepled credit cards), 1axpayers can refer to tax preparation software or & lax

mrofessional,

s When paying through tax preparation soltware, users will be prompled o enter the necessary cradit card

informalion.

"a Pay by phona and mterneilgmns are pvallable through service providers.,

« When paying by phone, 8 r’aéurdaé scripl will prompt texpayers through the call.

» When paying by Intemst, 1expavers will be prompled lo complele the necessary eniry fiefds.

The following information s needed in order to complete a card payment:

' item Insbdqlnns
Pdmary SSH {Individual This s lhé socio! securily number of the first parson lisled on JRS tax package, (ax
paymenis) relurt.on.farm,
Secnnﬁary:SSN Trus is the social security number of (ne Secend person listed on ihe [RS lax package,
{ex reium ot form,
(optional field}

EiN (ﬁusiness payments)

This s the employer identifications number listed on the IRS lax package, tax relum o
form.

Card Number

The ascount number can be up lo 16 digits,

Expiration Dale-

Entarina four digh monihiyear of the expiration date (for example, June 2012 would

1 be enlcred 06 sad 12, respeclively).

Address (%nlémet only)

Enter fuli home address.

Address iz (phone only)

¥ insigicted, enter the cardholder's sireet address number of zip code. This should
match the address at which the card staternant is received by the cardholder. For
exarmpe, il the address is:

. 123 Maln Sireel
Maple Town, AA 45578

Enter 123 or 45678, as appropriate.

Amount of Tax Payment

Enlerthe axact amouni that you woutd like 10 pay including dollars and cents.

E-mait Address (Intemet

Eniet an g-mali address in order to receive an g-mail receipt of the paymenl

http://i#w‘w.irs. gov/efile/article/0,,id=101316,00.html
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only, optional field) irangaclion.

Taxpayer's Dayline Enler a talephone number where you can be reached Monday through Friday

Telephone Mumber between the hours of 7:00 am and 5:30 pm. This number will eniy be used to conlact
: - you if {here:is a problem with your payment Infarmatior.

Facts You Need to Know:
. Paymehls mmust be made slectronically throught 1ax preparation softwire, 8 1ax professional or e card payment
service pravider vig phone or internet.
« Cartts should not be forwarded Yo the IRS with the return or form,
s Actounl numbers should not bs writien on the retura or form,
« The payment date will be the date the charge is authorized.

» ‘Taxpayers can-make partial ppyments by phone or internal ! lhe tax preparalion softwara being used allows

-this. e
) P .
+ Muifipla:payinenls connct be made through tax preparation solward.

« Taxpayers who e-fle-ant e-pay should re-file rejected retums prorpily in order 1o ensure limely payment.
Cthorwise, the payment may have to be re-authorized through the card Issuer.

« Faderaltax deposits cannot be made through these optlons. Amounts not proparly deposited may be
subject to 2 10% penaily tor faiture to deposit through an avihorized financiat institution or EFTPS. lis the
respansinility of the employer to ensure that all taxes are paid or deposited correctly and on lime, Please rafer
1o Publigation 18 (Gircular E), Employsr's Tax Guide for eddilional information explaining the requirermants for
paying employment laxes.

« The iRS does not issue en Immediate releasa of & Federat Tax Lien when a credil or debit card payment is
made to full pay the tax Aablity. Please refer to Pyblication, 1468 for the recommznded payment option when
8n Immediaia release is necessary,

Cancellations, Eivors and Questions;

s Generalfy, payments cannot be cancalled,

» Taxpayers can ¢ the card {ssuer or service provider's cuslomer service number to repart problems such as
unzuorized chargas Of Concerns regarding payrnent errors.

« Texpayeés ¢an comact the IRS ol 1-800-829-1040 to repert problems concerning the amount of tax owed or
any clher maiter concemning tha tax return.

o Taxpayers Can also write to the IRS office whera the return would be maited regarding income 1ax payment
goncems. The Impactad taxpayer's SSN ot EIN, payment kax year, and payment methed should ba included.

o I the everil the servica provider falls to forward the tax payment Ic the Traasury, ihe taxpayer will be
tesponsitle forthe-tax payment and for any penallies and mnlerest,

» Volunisiry or gslirated paymants such as Form 4868 and Form t040-ES payrments that result in an
overpayment will.be resolved through nommsal adrinisirative procedures,

« In mostinstances, the Treasury will refund an everpayment 10 laxpayers once the return is received and
processed. An overpayment may be used Lo settie or offset an existing det! on \he taxpayer's account.

PUEBGEr P o o m =

Addliional information is provided In the articles below:
.Ela.:mulqr.ﬁuaqg‘immmwmmd.gmdis.qr..Qeni.l.ﬁam..ﬁaum.em,,m ions.(or. Businesses
Etegtronic Fundy Witndepas! ad Gragi,or Rebit Card Payment Options for Indiidyals
Downlggd 1RS Fprms a0d fnshuctions

P ; 5 P

Page Last Reviawed or Updated: Janvary 12, 2011
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HOUSE COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
EXECUTIVE SESSION on SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes,

DATE: April 21, 2011

LOB ROOM: 202

Amendments:
Sponsor: Rep. OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep. OLS Document #:
OLS Document #:

Sponsor: Rep.

=
Motions: OTPIA, ITL, Interim Study (Please circle one.)

Moved by Rep. K. Murphy
Seconded by Rep. R. Ober

Vote: 19-0 (Please attach record of roll call vote.)

Motions: OTP, OTP/A, ITL, Interim Study (Please circle one.)

Moved by Rep.

Seconded by Rep.

Vote: (Please attach record of roll call vote.)

CONSENT CALENDAR VOTE: 19-0
(Vote to place on Consent Calendar must be unanimous.)
Statement of Ihtent: Refer to Committee Report
Resgpectfully submitted,

Rep. Russell Ober, Cl

\%MZ A ?é/é’a )



HOUSE COMMITTEE ON WAYS AND MEANS
EXECUTIVE SESSION on SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: {New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to
accept credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

DATE: '//X/ [ 251/

LOB ROOM: 202

Amendments:
Sponsor; Rep. OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep. OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep. OLS Document #:

Motions: {OTP/OTP/A, ITL, Interim Study (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep. YM U"V‘ml"j
Seconded by Rep. 1o I\M

Vota: {q V7 {Please attach record of roll call vote.)

Motions: OTP, OTP/A, ITL, Interim Study (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep.
Seconded by Rep.

Vote: (Please attach record of roll call vote.)

// CONSENT CALENDAR VOTE: 1G-0o
(Vo%e to place on Consent Calendar must be unanimous.)
Statement of Intent: Refer to Committee Report
Respectfully submitted,

Rep. Russell Ober, Clerk




OFFICE OF THE HOUSE CLERK 2011 SESSION
WAYS AND MEANS

. CVEWT 7L £) &Ww-agm LA 0pilrmier . GFALocrict
Bill #{S/g \% "M Title: }’.4:1; it %" @G/‘ _».“ f AL -_‘ h el fEnd wté Vel Lepes

PH Date: ___ % 4 \f"’ I Xz

Exec Session Date: / !

Motion; Amendment #:
MEMBER YEAS NAYS

Stepanek, Stephen B, Chairman e

Major, Norman L, V Chairman v

Griffin, Mary E /
‘/
v/

Hess, David W  Balelasore

Sapareto, Frank V
Ulery, Jordan G i
Osgood, doe 4
Ober, Russell T, Clerk
Abrami, Patrick F
Azarian, Gary S
Daugherty, Duffy
McDonnell, John J
Murphy, Keith
Ohm, Bill

Sanborn, Laurie J

WS EPNS

NRNE

«Slmler, Wyman E | .?2%3“”0
Almy, Susan W
Hamm, Christine C
Butynski, William
Hatch, William A 5
Cooney, Mary R

N ILN ERN AR NN B

N

)70

TOTAL VOTE:
Printed: 1/19/2011




HOUSE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

EXECUTIVE SESSION on SB 66-FN

BILL TITLE: {(New Title) authorizing the department of revenue adminijstration to accept
credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

DATE: May 10, 2011

LOB ROOM: 210-211

Executive Session was recessed until after 2 pm hearing; need to redraft Kurk amendment # 1818h
and change to House Finance amendment. Motion made by Rep. L.. Ober, seconded by Rep. Keane to

change line # 12 to read percentage rather than amount. Motion failed.

Amendments:
Sponsor: Rep. Kurk OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep, House Finance OLS Document #:

Motions: OTP, ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)

Moved by Rep. Kurk
Seconded by Rep. Keane

- Vote: {Please attach record of roll call vote.)

Motiona: @OTP;’A, ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep. Cebrowski
Seconded by Rep. W. Smith

Vote: approved (Please attach record of roll call vote.)

e
Motiona: OTR, OTP/A, 1TL, Retained (Please circle one.)

Moved by Rep. Vaillancourt
Seconded by Rep. Rosenwald

Vote: 26-0 (Please attach record of roll call vote.)

2011

2011

-
./;ﬁ@ or CONSENT CALENDAR (Please circle one.)

(Vote to place on Consent Calendar must be unanimous.)

Statement of Intent: Refer to Committee Report

Respectfully sufymitted,
ep. Karen Umberger, k

1818h

1837h



I

HOUSE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

EXECUTIVE SESSION on SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept
credit card and debit card payments of taxes.

DATE: MWW«\ 10, 801}

LOB ROOM: 210-211

Amendments

Sponsor: Rep. \M ~ {R1 E\f\ OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep. &mﬂ_ OLS Document #:

Sponsor; Rep.

OLS Document #;

Motions: OTP ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep. \JM/VQL
Seconded by Rep. M

Vote: (Please attach record of roll call vote.)
Motions; OTP, OTF/A, ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep.

Seconded by Rep.

Vote: {Pleasge attach record of roll call vote.)

REGULAR or CONSENT CALENDAR (Please circle one.)

{Vote to place on Consent Calendar must be unanimous.)

Statement of Tntent:

Refer to Committee Report
Respectfully submitted,

Rep. Karen Umberger, Clerk




HOUSE COMMITTEE ON FINANCE

EXECUTIVE SESSION on SB 56-FN

BILL TITLE: {(New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept
credit card and debit card payments of taxes.
DATE: May 052011
70

LOB ROOM: 210-211

OLS Document#: QO 1l -1¥34 \(\

Sponsor: Rep. V[ )& 0-rryayD OLS Document #:
Sponsor: Rep. OLS Document #:
Motions: OTP,(OTPIA) ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)

. i\
Moved by Rep. DW&W
Seconded by R""P-’Q,&wpwz&m

Vote: (Please attach record of roll call vote.)
Motions: OTP, OTP/A, ITL, Retained (Please circle one.)
Moved by Rep.

Seconded by Rep.

Vote: {Please attach record of roll call vote.}

REGULAR or CONSENT CALENDAR (Please circle one.)
(Vote to place on Consent Calendar must be unanimous.)
Statement of Intent: Refer to Committee Report
Respectfully submitted,

Rep. Karen Umberger, Clerk



UFFIGE UF THE HUUSE CLEKK ' ZULL SEODIUN

FINAN CE

Bill #: &L_L_o__
PH Date: ___ I _
Motion: _(O 1 % A | Amendment#_ 2 01| -~ X 18 W
MEMBER YEAS _ NAYS
Weyler Kenneth L, Chairman WA
Ober, Lynne M, V Chairman AS
Kurk, Neal M |
Emerton, Larry 2
Rodeschin, Beverly T 3
Belvin, William 8 L}
Elliott, Rebert J 3
Vaillancourt, Steve [P
Allen, Mary M | 1
Garcia, Marﬂmda J | | <
Barry, Rlchard W 0‘
Cebrowsk;, John W 1O
Sova, Charles E [
Smith, William B s
Umberger, Karen C, Clerk l )
Keane, Thomas E \ L_{
McGuire, Dan | | j/
Simard, Paul H | lp
Twombly, Timothy L } ._,]
Worsman, Colette \ s(
FooserRebert-A Uy va =
Nordgren, Sharon a1
Barcody, Benjamin C 2
Benn, Bernard L 23
Lerandeau, Alfred C 273
Rosenwald, Cindy ke L.J
TOTAL VOTE: e BK
Printed: 5/5/2011
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CONSENT CALENDAR

April 27, 2011

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

REPORT OF COMMITTEE

The Committee on WAYS AND MEANS to which was

referred SB56-FN,

AN ACT (New Title) authorizing the department of
revenue administration to accept credit card and debit
card payments of taxes. Having considered the same,

- report the same with the recommendation that the bill

OUGHT TO PASS.

Rep. Keith Murphy

FOR THE COMMITTEE

Original: House Clerk
Cc: Committee Bill File




COMMITTEE REPORT

Committee: WAYS AND MEANS
Bill Number: SB56-FN
Title: (New Title) authorizing the department of

revenue administration to accept credit card
and debit card payments of taxes.

t Date: April 21, 2011
:Consent Calendar: YES
Recommendation: OQUGHT TO PASS
STATEMENT OF INTENT

This bill anthorizes the Department of Revenue to accept credit and debit cards
when collecting taxes. It provides a convenience to taxpayers that choose to use it,
and the department anticipates some savings due to the ease of processing
electronic payments compared to the 265,000 paper checks currently processed
annually. Implementation will cost the state nothing, and processing fees will be
paid by the taxpayer to the chosen payment processor. This same method has been
used for years by the Secretary of State with great success.

Vote 19-0.

Rep. Keith Murphy
FOR THE COMMITTEE

Original: House Clerk
Cc: Committee Bill File




CONSENT CALENDAR

WAYS AND MEANS

SB56-FN, (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card

and debit card payments of taxes. QUGHT TO PASS,

Rep. Keith Murphy for WAYS AND MEANS. This bill authorizes the Department of Revenue to

~ accept credit and debit cards when collecting taxes. It provides a convenience to taxpayers that
choose to use it, and the department anticipates some savings due to the ease of processing electronic

payments compared to the 265,000 paper checks currently processed annually. Implementation will

cost the state nothing, and processing fees will be paid by the taxpayer to the chosen payment

processor. This same method has been used for years by the Secretary of State with great success.

Vote 19-0.

Original: House Clerk
Cc: Committee Bill File




SB56-FN K. Murphy OTP 19-0  CC

This bill authorizes the Department of Revenue to accept credit and debit cards when
collecting taxes. It provides a convenience to taxpayers that choose to use it, and the
department anticipates some savings due to the ease of processing electronic payments
compared to the 265,000 paper checks currently processed annually. Implementation
will cost the state nothing, and processing fees will be paid by the taxpayer to the chosen
payment processor. This same method has been used for years by the Secretary of State
with great success.




Page 1 of 1

Soulard, Joan

From: Keith Murphy [rep.keithmurphy@gmait.com}

Sent:  Thursday, April 21, 2011 1:09 PM

To: Soulard, Joan

Subject: Fwd: SB 56

Hi Joan,

Please print this blurb for approval. Again.

Thanks,

Keith

SB 56 authorizes the Department of Revenue to accept credit and debit cards when collecting
taxes. It provides a convenience to taxpayers that choose to use it, and the department
anticipates some savings due to the ease of processing electronic payments compared to the
265,000 paper checks currently processed annually. Implementation will cost the state nothing,

and processing fees will be paid by the taxpayer to the chosen payment processor. This same
method has been used for years by the Secretary of State with great success.

/<
53

4/21/2011



COMMITTEE REPORT

COMMITTEE; Z{QZ%; :L_ﬁiw

BILL NUMBER: S8 Ge-r
TITLE: "
gﬁm - .
DATE: ' CONSENT CALENDAR: YE$X] NoO[]
(X oveHTTO PASS -
P& OUGHT TO PASS W/ AMENDMENT l Amendment No. 1
[] INEXPEDIENT TO LEGISLATE ===
D INTERIM STUDY (Available only 20d year of biennium)
STATEMENT OF INTENT:
COMMITTEE VOTE: / 9’0 _ .

RESPECTF SUBMITTED,

Rep. — - '((2!% ﬁ?‘”l"‘
e (/ For the Committee '

¢ Copy to Committee Bill File
+ Use Another Report for Minority Report

Rev. 020107 - Yellow



REGULAR CALENDAR

May 11, 2011

HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

REPORT OF COMMITTEE

The Committee on FINANCE to which was referred SB56-FN,

AN ACT (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue
administration to accept credit card and debit card payments
of taxes. Having considered the same, report the same with
the following amendment, and the recommendation that the

bill OUGHT TO PASS WITH AMENDMENT.

Rep. Steve Vaillancourt

FOR THE COMMITTEE

Original: House Clerk
Cc: Committee Bill File




COMMITTEE REPORT

Committee: FINANCE
Bill Number: SB56-FN
Title: | (New Titlé) authorizing the department of revenue

administration to accept credit card and debit card
payments of taxes.

Date: May 11, 2011

Consent Calendar: NO

Recommendation: OUGHT TO PASS WITH AMENDMENT
STATEMENT OF INTENT

This bill provides a convenience for businesses or individuals to pay their tax bills
by credit card. The committee amendment guarantees that the department of
revenue administration will properly notify those paying that the cost from the
credit card company will be added to the payment. Thus, the state will lose no
money with this bill. In fact, there is evidence that this bill will save the state
money since DRA numbers indicate it costs approximately $2.23 to process a check
($592,553 divided by 265,000 checks). DRA will negotiate the best rate available
from a credit card company through an open bidding process. Nothing in this bill
will require any entity or person to pay by credit card.

Vote 26-0.

Rep. Steve Vaillancourt
FOR THE COMMITTEE

Original: House Clerk
Cc: Committee Bill File




REGULAR CALENDAR

FINANCE

SB56-FN, (New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card
and debit card payments of taxes. OUGHT TO PASS WITH AMENDMENT.

Rep. Steve Vaillancourt for FINANCE. This bill provides a convenience for businesses or individuals
to pay their tax bills by credit card. The committee amendment guarantees that the department of
revenne administration will properly notify those paying that the cost from the credit card company
will be added to the payment. Thus, the state will lose no money with this bill. In fact, there is
evidence that this bill will save the state money since DRA numbers indicate it costs approximately
$2.23 to process a check ($592,553 divided by 265,000 checks). DRA will negotiate the best rate
available from a credit card company through an open bidding process. Nothing in this bill will
require any entity or person to pay by credit card. Vote 26-0.

Original: House Clerk
Ce: Committee Bill File



COMMITTEE REPORT

COMMITTEE: EI_MM Ce
BILL NUMBER: 3 g S&-FN
- TITLE; CkUaﬂ’-ﬂ He) Chw&&\m—.zmq e C\c_mc/éﬁ*\m\?r Of e ueaue
A o vhes e \omm’r Cleed. ¥ Cod @ et cord Wﬁ@,ﬁs
DATE: So{g=]/ _ CONSENT CALENDAR: YE{] NO[¢ F Aoty

. . —
mr————— —— ———

{] OUGHT TO PASS

, J Amendment Nb.
[gl ' HT TO PAS | AMENDMENT
OouG SW, N ﬂaj/—/€37lq :

[__-_] INEXPEDIENT TO LEGISLATE

~ [[] INTERIM STUDY (Available only 2% year of biennium)

sy, e
re ————s

This A// orawdsu A _cenvenrence (QV J“'JWO"_
M dugd -k/)cw 7K‘W” e pills b{} credfees’ TS
Ganttel MM o IANRCES 7%# 4 @mﬂ ,MQ/
Biepnys. Adiy o VLG/AM gr QWM M{"@ ‘7%*:@ v ﬁwﬂﬂf W
7&( mﬂ'@m’(&ﬁwﬁﬁcm/ /‘[mﬂn,wf H/‘J baw;é %Q
Dpmand Tz, o st il /cfemnwwvr it Tt LY. T
L:} il 5 polsre Ml oo b1l ol gl Fie Mﬂw}
S Dk it adiedt feb agpondsty  H 32t
Pucenta N (573557 dul by 265 cockectls)

DKH ! n@z/{\‘lﬁr% M#mf//%MM 7[;‘%/} c{@{/}/ ccrd/
conprty bocid by ponblley focer. AT Tl bll i/

. A . — me* s
COMMITTEE VOTE: A O \-;ﬁ% Lyp )Ly gm

v — prerora—renie
— - —— Aam———

~ RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED

o Copy to Committee Bill File %C—[/ A
| e Aot Repon for inory erer g bllornee /.

For the Committee

Rev. 02/01/07 - Yellow U W




Bill_Status Page 1 of 1

New Hampshire General Court - Bill Status System

Doc kEt of SB56 Docket Abbreviations

Bill Title: {New Title) authorizing the department of revenue administration to accept credit card and debit
card payments of taxes.

Official Docket of SBS6G:

Date Body Description

2/3/2011 s Introduced and Referred to Ways & Méans, $1 5, Pg.44

2/24/2011 S Hearing: 3/7/11, Room 100, State House, 1:00 p.m.; SC13

3/8/2011 S Committee Report: Qught to Pass with Amendment #2011-0688s, NT,
Session Date: 3/16/11; SC15

3/16/2011 S Comimittee Amendment 0688s, NT, AA, VV; §3 9, Pg.140

3/16/2011 s Ought to Pass with Amendment 0688s, NT, MA, VV; Refer to Finance Rule
4-3; $31 9, Pg.140

3/1772011 S Committee Report: Ought to Pass, 3/23/11; SC16

3/23/2011 ) Qught to Pass, MA, VV; OT3rdg; $J 10, Pg.174

3/23/2011 S Passed by Third Reading Resolution; SJ 10, Pg.187

3/28/2011 H Introduced and Referred to Ways and Means [3/17/2011]; HJ 30,
PG.1036

3/30/2011 H Pubtic Hearing: 4/5/2011 10:00 AM LOB 202

4/13/2011 H Executive Session: 4/21/2011 12:30 PM LOB 202

4/21/2011 H Committee Report: Qught to Pass for April 27 (Vote 19-0; CC); HC 33,
PG.1068

4/27/2011 H Ought to Pass: MA VV; H] 40, PG.1355

4727720113 H Referred to Finance; HJ 40, PG.1355

4/2872011 H Public Hearing: 5/5/2011 10:00 AM LOB 210-211

4/28/2011 H Full Committee Work Session: 5/5/2011 1:30 PM LOB 210-211

4/28/2011 H Executive Session: 5/5/2011 LOB 210-211 3:00 PM or immediately

- following work session ==Recessed==

5/5/2011 H ==Reconvene== Executive Session: 5/10/2011 9:45 AM LOB 210-211

5/11/2011 H Committee Report: Qught to Pass with Amendment #1837h for May 18
(Vote 26-0; RC); HC 39, PG.1324

5/11/2011 H Proposed Committee Amendment #2011-1837h; HC 39, PG.1341

5/18/2011 H Amendment #1837h Adopted, VV; H] 44, PG.1546-1547

5/18/2011 H Ought to Pass with Amendment #1837h: MA VV; H] 44, PG,1546-1547

5/25/2011 S Sen. Odeil Concurs with House Amendment #1837h, MA, VV; §] 18,

' Pg.390

6/8/2011 H Enrolled; H2 51, PG.1724

6/8/2011 S Envrolled

6/14/2011 S gilgan;d by the Governor on 06/14/2011; Effective 08/13/2011; Chapter

NH House NH Senate

http://gencourt.state.nh.us/bill_status/bill_docket.aspx?lsr=943&sy=201 1 &sortoption=&tx... 9/10/2013
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